
BINGHAM 

0.. I I 

llf11t,o- I 

't 

.... I , 1-:'\ 

• I I • 

Russell M. Blau 
Jeffiey R. Strenkowski 
russell.blau@bingham.com 
jeffrey.strenkowski@bingharn.com 

October l , 2014 

Via Overnight Courier 

Ann Cole, Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
Office of Commission Clerk 
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2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 REDAC ED 
Re: Application of GC Pivotal, LLC d/b/a Global Capacity for Authority to 

Provide Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida 

Dear Ms. Cole: 

On behalf of GC Pivotal, LLC d/b/a Global Capacity ("Global Capacity"), enclosed for 
filing are an original and one ( l) copy of an Application for Authority to Provide Resold 
Local Exchange and lnterexchange Telecommunications Services within the State of 
Fl01ida. Also enclosed is a check in the amount of $500.00 to cover the requisite filing 
fee. 

Pursuant to Rule 25-22.006(5), Florida Administrative Code, Global Capacity 
respectfully requests confidential treatment for the confidential and proprietary 
infom1ation included as Exhibit D of the Application. One ( l) copy of Cof"!fidential 
Exhibit D has been submitted under seal along with one (I) highlighted copy of 
confidential Exhibit D and two (2) redacted copies of confidential Exhibit D. 

Please date-stamp the enclosed extra copy of this filing and return it in the envelope 
provided. Should you have any questions concerning this filing, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. -. 

~ 

Respectfully submitted, 

Russell M. Blau 
Jeffrey R. Strenkowski 

COM __ _ 

AFD 

APA 
ECO __ _ 

Counsel for GC Pivotal, LLC d/b/a Global Capacity ENG __ _ 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

OFFICE OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

APPLICATION FORM 

FOR 

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SERVICE 

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

Instructions 

A. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval oftransfer 
of an existing certificate. In the case of a transfer, the information provided shall be for 
the transferee (See Page 8). 

B. Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application. If an item is not 
applicable, please explain. 

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

D. Once completed, submit the original and one copy of this form along with a non­
refundable application fee of $500.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Office of Commission Clerk 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6770 

E. A filing fee of $500.00 is required for the transfer of an existing certificate to another 
company. 

F. If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Office of Telecommunications 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6600 

FORM PSCffEL 162 (12112) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida -Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 

Page 1 



1. This is an application for (check one): 

C8J Original certificate (new company). See Exhibit A for further information. 

D Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original 
certificate of authority rather that apply for a new certificate. 

2. Name of company: GC Pivotal, LLC 

3. Name under which applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

Applicant will conduct business under the name Global Capacity 

4. Official mailing address: 

Street/Post Office Box: 180 North LaSalle Street, Suite 2430 
City: Chicago 

State: IL 
~---------------------------------------

Zip: 60601 

5. Florida address: Not applicable 

Street/Post Office Box: -----------------------------------------
City:------------------­

State: ---------------------------------------Zip: -----------------------------------------
6. Structure of organization: 

D 
D 
D 
~ 

Individual D 
Foreign Corporation D 
General Partnership D 
Other, please specify: 
Foreign Limited Liability Company 

FORM PSC/TEL 162 (12112) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida- Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 

Corporation 
Foreign Partnership 
Limited Partnership 

Pagel 



If individual, provide: Not applicable 

Name: --------------------------------------Title: ----------------------------------------StreeUPost Office Box: ------------------------------------City: ----------------------------------------
State: ----------------------------------------

Zip: -----------------------------------------
Telephone No.: -----------------------------------­

Fax No.: ----------------------------------------E-Mail Address: -----------------------------------------Website Address: -----------------------------------------
7. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida. The 

Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number is: Not applicable 

8. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida. The Florida 
Secretary of State corporate registration number is: M10000002464. See Exhibit B 
for Certificate of Authority to Operate in Florida. 

9. If using fictitious name (d/b/a), provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida. The Florida Secretary of State 
fictitious name registration number is: G14000094834. See Exhibit B 

10. If a limited liability partnership, please proof of registration to operate in Florida. 
The Florida Secretary of State registration number is: Not applicable 

11. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the 
partnership agreement. Not applicable 

Name: --------------------------------------Title: -----------------------------------StreeUPost Office Box: ---------------------------------------
City:------------------­

State: -----------------------------------Zip: -------------------------------------
Telephone No.: --------------------------------------

Fax No.: ---------------------------------­
E-Mail Address: ------------------------------------Website Address: ----------------------------------------

12. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited 
partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable. The Florida registration 
number is: Not applicable 

FORM PSCffEL 162 (12/12) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida- Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 
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13. Provide F.E.I. Number: 27-2666227 

14. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission in regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: 
Russell M. Blau 
Jeffrey R. Strenkowski 

Title: 

Street Name & Number: 

Counsel for GC Pivotal, LLC d/b/a Global Capacity 
Bingham McCutchen LLP 
2020 K St., NW 

Post Office Box: 
~~~~-------------------------------

City: Washington 
State: DC ---------------------------------------Zip: 20006 ---------------------------------------

Telephone No.: (202) 373-6000 
~~~~~~---------------------------Fax No.: (202) 373-6001 
~--~----~---------------------------

E-Mail Address: russell.blau@bingham.com 
jeffrey.strenkowski@bingham.com 

Website Address: www.bingham.com 
------~~-----------------------------

(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Name: Jeremy M. Kissel 
Title: General Counsel 

Street Name & Number: 180 North LaSalle Street 
Post Office Box: ---------------------------------------

City: Chicago 
State: IL 

~~~---------------------------------Zip: 60601 
Telephone No.: _,(._3_12 ...... )_6_7_3-_2_40_0 ____________ _ 

Fax No.: (312) 265-2422 
E-Mail Address: jkissel@globalcapacity.com 

Website Address: www.globalcapacity.com 

(c) Where will you officially designate as your place of publicly publishing your 
schedule (a/kla tariffs or price lists)? 

rgj Florida Public Service Commission 
Price Lists will be provided prior to Applicant providing service 

D Website - Website address: 
D Other- Please provide address: 

15. List the states in which the applicant: 

FORM PSC/TEL 162 (12/12) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida· Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 
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(a) has operated as a telecommunications company. 

Global Capacity currently holds authority or is registered to provide some 
form of telecommunications services in the following jurisdictions: Alabama, 
Arizona, Arkansas, California, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbia, 
Florida (interexchange on a deregulated basis), Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, 
Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, 
Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Louisiana, Maine, New Hampshire, Nevada, 
New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, 
Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Texas, 
Utah, Vermont, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin. 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as a telecommunications company. 

Global Capacity is in the process of filing applications for authority or 
registering to provide telecommunications services in Colorado, Florida, 
Georgia, Idaho, Nebraska, New Jersey, Tennessee, Washington, and 
Wyoming, and is planning to request expanded authority in several of the 
states listed above (including Florida). 

(c) is certificated to operate as a telecommunications company. 

See answer to 15(a). 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as a telecommunications company and the 
circumstances involved. 

None. Applicant has not been denied authority to operate in any jurisdiction. 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

In 2013, the regulatory staff of the Nevada Public Utilities Commission issued 
a petition for a show cause order against Global Capacity due to an 
incomplete annual report filing for calendar year 2012. See Nevada PUC 
Docket No. 13-08019. Global Capacity was ultimately fined $50 for a late filing. 
See Nevada PUC Docket No. 13-10053, Procedural Order No. 3. 

(f) has been involved in civil court proceedings with another telecommunications 
entity, and the circumstances involved. 

None. Applicant has not been involved in any civil court proceedings with 
another telecommunications provider. 

16. Have any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders previously 
been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent (and not had his or her competency 
FORM PSCITEL 162 (12/12) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Witbin tbe State of Florida- Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 
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restored), or found guilty of any felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may 
result from pending proceedings. DYes 1:8] No 

If yes, provide explanation. 

(b) granted or denied a certificate in the State of Florida (this includes active and 
canceled certificates). DYes 1:8] No 

If yes, provide explanation and list the certificate holder and certificate number. 

(c) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated or 
registered telephone company. DYes 1:8] No 

If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer associated with 
company, give reason why not. 

17. Submit the following: 

(a) Managerial capability: Resumes of employees/officers of the company that 
would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. Please explain if a 
resume represents an individual that is not employed with the company and provide 
proof that the individual authorizes the use of the resume. See Exhibit C. 

(b) Technical capability: Resumes of employees/officers of the company that 
would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what company has been 
contracted to conduct technical maintenance. Please explain if a resume represents 
an individual that is not employed with the company and provide proof that the 
individual authorizes the use of the resume. See Exhibit C. 

(c) Financial Capability: Applicant's audited financial statements for the most 
recent three (3) years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it 
shall so be stated. Unaudited financial statements should be signed by the 
applicant's chief executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the 
financial statements are true and correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet, 
2. income statement, and 
3. statement of retained earnings. 

Financial information demonstrating Global Capacity's financial qualifications 
is provided under seal as Exhibit D. As shown in the attached information, 
Global Capacity is financially qualified to operate within the State of Florida 
Applicant is also providing an affirmation from F. Francis Najafi, President,1 

1 Mr. Najafi is the Founder and CEO of Pivotal Group, a leading investment company with an equity portfolio that 
includes Global Capacity. 

FORM PSCffEL 162 (12/12) Page 6 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Florida - Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 



and Richard Garner, Secretary and Treasurer, that the financial statements are 
true and correct. 

Note: It is the applicant's burden to demonstrate that it possesses adequate 
managerial capability, technical capability, and financial capability. Additional 
supporting information can be supplied at the discretion of the applicant. 

FORM PSCffEL 162 (12/12) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State or Florida- Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must pay a 
regulatory assessment fee. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a 
minimum annual assessment fee, as defined by the Commission, is required . 

RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: I acknowledge receipt and understanding of 
the Florida Public Service Commission's rules and orders relating to the provisioning of 
telecommunications company service in Florida. 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, 
attest to the accuracy of the information contained in this application and attached 
documents and that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and 
financia l capability to provide telecommunications company service in the State of Florida. 
I have read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my 
company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules 
and orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes. "Whoever 
knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public 
servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of 
the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083." 

I understand that any false statements can result in being denied a certificate of authority in 
Florida. 

C OMPANY O W,NER OR O FFICER 

Richard Garner 
Title: Secretary and Treasurer 
Telephone No.: (312) 673-2400 
E-Mail Address: rgarner@pivotalgroup.com 

Signature: 

FORM PSCf f EL 162 (12112) 
Application to Provide Telecommunications Company Service 
Within the State of Flor ida -Commission Rule No. 25-4.004, F.A.C. 

PageS 



Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 

Exhibit D 
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LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Background 

Authority to Transact Business 

Management Biographies 

Financial Statements - CONFIDENTIAL - SUBMITTED UNDER SEAL 



EXHIBIT A 

This Application is being filed as part of a larger transaction whereby Global 

Capacity intends to obtain certain network assets and data service customers from 

Mega Path Corporation ("MegaPath"). Global Capacity intends to provide services to those 

customers under the same rates, terms and conditions as they are currently provided by 

Mega Path. Consistent with the services provided by Mega Path, Global Capacity does not 

intend to provide voice services at this time. In order to serve those customers, Global 

Capacity is hereby requesting facilities-based and resold authority, and intends to adopt 

the existing Mega Path tariffs (if any). Any future changes in the rates, terms or conditions 

of services provided to affected customers will be undertaken pursuant to their service 

contracts and/or applicable federal and state tariffing requirements. 

A/76311220 



EXHIBIT B 

Authority to Transact Business 

An6311220 



State of Florida 
Department of State 

I certify from the records of this office that GC PIVOTAL, LLC is a Delaware 
limited liability company authorized to transact business in the State ofFlorida, 
qualified on June 1, 2010. 

The document number of this limited Liability company is M10000002464. 

I further certify that said limited liability company has paid all fees due this 
office through December 31, 2014, that its most recent annual report was filed 
on January 7, 2014, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said limited liability company has not filed a Certificate of 
Withdrawal. 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 
at Tallahassee, the Capital, this 
the Sixteenth day of September, 
2014 

~ Q~ 
Secretary of State 

Authentication ID: CU4506993634 

To a uthenticate tbis cert ificate, visit t he following site,enter th is 
ID, and then follow the instructions displayed. 

b ttps :// efile.s u n biz. org/certa u thver. h tm I 



September 18, 201j4 

l. 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
Division of Corporations 

GLOBAL CAPACI1'Y 
180 N. LASALLE, !STE. 2430 
CHICAGO, IL 606'01 

Subject: GLOBAL 
1
CAPACITV 

REGISTRATION 1'1~UMBER: G14000094834 

This will acknowle:dge the filing of the above fictitious name registration which 
was registered orl September 17, 2014. This registration gives no rights to 
ownership of the n ~me. 

Each fictitious na1 ne registration must be renewed every five years between 
January 1 and Docember 31 of the expiration year to maintain registration. 
Three months prio· · to the expiration date a statement of renewal will be mailed. 

If the mailing addrE1~ss of this business changes, please notify this office in writing, 
or through the link provided on our website www.sunbiz.org for Address & 
FEI/EIN Changes. '

1 
Please reference the original registration number. 

Should you have ~ tny questions regarding this matter you may contact our office 
at (850) 245-6058 .. 

Leslie Sellers 
Reinstatement Section 
Division of Corpor1ttions Letter No. 814A00019993 

Account number: .20000000195 Account charged: 50.00 

www.sunbiz.org 

Division of Corporations- P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314 
I 
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APPLICATION FOR RE ISTRATION 0~ ,;TITIOUS NAME 
Note: Acknowledgements/certt 1tes wiU be sent to the . ress in Section 1 on!y. 

Global Capacity . . i, 1 
Fictitio~ Name lobe Regi~ t. ::i e.d (see inslrm,1ions if narrh ; j.: ides "Corp~ or Mine~) u: l 

1. 

------------- -------------
180 N. LASALLE )UITE 2430 '! 14 SEP 17 Pi'\ l~ ~ 10 
M~ Address of BLJSiness; , ' 'I 

CH CAGO, !L 6( :)1 
·,ll 

City State ! Zip Code fJ. t : 
:'"', \ 

3. Florida County of prinC: {31 place of business 
MULTIPLE .ii:;.i ., 

(see instL .. .-·Jons if more !han one count, 
\ 

~===FE=I=N=u=m=be=r=:=====:i '=========== This space tor office use only 

A. Owner(s) of Fictitiou;.l 1 i.lame It Individual(' 'Use an attachment If necessary): 
! I 

1. 2. 
Last 

' . ~ ~~ t.. 
·~ .. Las\ Flr&l M.l. 

~: ! 
Address Address 

City Slate Zipd City State Zip Code 

B. Owner(s) of Fictitiou · , ~arne If other than individual: (Use attachment if necessary): 

1. GC Pivotal, LLC 2. ---------.. ·. '- Enllly Name Entity Name 

180 N. LASALLb; !SUITE 2430 
Address Addr<Jss 

' I . 
CHICAGO, IL 6C::J ~1:.,--__ --=--=-
c~y .:·, ' : 1State Zip C• ·, ... 
Florida Document 1'2:: · :nber M 1 000000, . 14 

City State 

Florida Document Number 

Z.\p Code 

FEf Number: __ J,:-:( .. ·' FEI Number: 

0 Applied fo ·. ·! D Not Applicab: 'I. . D Applied for 0 Not Applicable 

( 'I . ';==;=;;==;==;=====.~====================~ I the undersigned, being an owner I · ; ·19 above fictitious name, , . ·,, fy that the information Indicated on this fonn is true and accurate. In accordance with 
Section 665.09, F.S., l further certit •flat the fictitious name tc,;; 'j registered has been advertised at least once in a newspaper as defined in chapter 
50, Florida Statutes, in the countyt' !re the prfndpal place o1: ' !ness is located. I understand that the signature below shall have the same legal 
effect as if made under oath and I ~' · 1 aware that false inform; 1 ., ..>. submitted in a document to the Department of State constitutes a third degree 
felony as provided for In s.81 ;tt55t · .• IS, "-{ ·, .. ·. 

? .... ft, I /.// '~ ~ '· 

---:::---:---;-:;:---:,Y._.o:;'---'";';/;p~ I :ll;\ :i_ 
Signature of Own • •;,..: Date 1' 

.. tlit·, 
· •• 1 .. 

E-maii address: (lo be used fo.r future renewal notification) 

• ~ I 
FOR CANCELLATION C '•VIPLETE SECTION· 

.. 
'1NLY: 

FOR FICTITIOUS NAME!, :·.R OWNERSHIP Cl- · GE COMPLETE SECTIONS 1 THROUGH 4: 

1 (we) the undersign(:.::: hereby cancel t"-} l.'ictitious name _____________ _ .,,.J' ',,,\•. 
_________ ,;·~, __ , which wa· ·. '~gistereq on --------- and was assigned 

lt 
registration number _:1} ______ --: I .. , . 

. ·1: 
S ( I .---=o=---

.__ ___ ;_9n_a_tu_re_o_o_w_n_e' ___ j ____ a_t• __ _ Signature of Owner Date 

Mark the apr: 1 able boxes D <' ificate of Status- $1 0 D Certified Copy- $30 
NON-REFUN · ·' 1,3LE PROCESSING FEE: $50 

CR4E001 (9/1 0) 



EXHIBITC 

Management Biographies 

F. Francis Najafi- Founder and CEO 

F. Francis Najafi is founder and CEO of Pivotal Group, a leading investment company 
focused on private equity and real estate. 

He founded the privately held firm 30 years ago, investing in landmark properties. 

Pivotal Group's real estate investments have included major hotel properties including 
the Century Plaza Hotel in Los Angeles, Class A commercial office properties such as 
650 California Street in San Francisco, and community development projects, including 
Promontory in Park City. 

Drawn by the unrealized potential of well-managed middle-market companies with 
unique assets, Mr. Najafi entered the private equity market in 2002, and acquired 
Network Solutions, the world's largest domain-name registry, in 2003. His acquisition 
philosophy is to initiate and support management-led efforts to build long-term value 
through the adoption of disruptive innovation, developing new products, expanding 
markets served and the continued optimization of its cost structure. 

Pivotal Group's private equity portfolio includes Global Capacity, the industry's first 
telecom logistics company globally serving system integrators, carriers and enterprise 
clients. 

Mr. Najafi completed his Bachelor of Science degree in engineering at Arizona State 
University (ASU), followed by two Masters Degrees from Thunderbird -The School of 
Global Management, and the University of Southern California (USC). At USC, he 
began his entrepreneurial activities while a Ph.D. candidate in International Political 
Economy. 

Over the past quarter century while heading Pivotal Group, Mr. Najafi devoted 
significant time and resources to causes in the public interest. His commitment to 
community service spans the world. Mr. Najafi is a board member of EastWest Institute, 
a global think-and-do tank that devises innovative solutions to pressing security 
concerns; is a member of Urban Land Institute and a governor of the ULI Foundation, 
which generates funding for research and public service activities that enhance 
communities. Additionally, he is active in the World President's Organization, a global 
organization focused on corporate responsibility and personal service and Chief 
Executive's Organization (CEO), which represents 2,000 global leaders who represent 
leading businesses around the world. 

A/76311220 



In Arizona, Mr. Najafi is a foundation board member of the Translational Genomics 
Research Institute, which employs innovative advancements from the Human Genome 
Project. 

Mr. Najafi's wide-ranging philanthropic interests include the Arizona Science Center, 
PARSA Community Foundation, Public Affairs Alliance of Iranian Americans (PAAIA), 
Science Foundation Arizona and Teach for America. 

Jack Lodge - President 

Jack Lodge is the President of Global Capacity, responsible for all aspects of strategy 
and execution of the company. He has over 23 years of experience in information 
technology and telecommunications. Mr. Lodge served as Global Capacity's COO since 
2008, and has been a key driver in the development of the company's industry-leading 
One Marketplace platform. Under his leadership, the number of customers and 
suppliers participating in One Marketplace has grown steadily, while the company has 
achieved significant improvements in gross margin and EBITDA performance. 

Mr. Lodge joined Global Capacity in 2006 via the acquisition of CentrePath, Inc., a 
privately-held network management and engineering company where he served as 
General Manager, with responsibility for all aspects of CentrePath's managed services 
business. Prior to joining CentrePath's predecessor company, GiantLoop, Mr. Lodge 
held several leadership positions in the IT organization at Nortel Networks, where his 
responsibilities included network architecture and strategy. Lodge joined Nortel via the 
1998 acquisition of Bay Networks, where he held a number of IT management 
positions. At Bay Networks, Mr. Lodge led the IT infrastructure integration following the 
1994 merger of Wellfleet Communications and Synoptics Communications that created 
Bay Networks. Prior to Wellfleet I Bay Networks, Mr. Lodge owned and operated a 
regional network services and maintenance business, distributing and supporting 
technology from multiple manufacturers. He began his career with AT&T in 1989 in a 
sales role. 

Mr. Lodge holds a B.A. from the College of the Holy Cross, and an M.B.A. from 
Northeastern University. He played varsity lacrosse at Holy Cross, and remains active 
as a youth lacrosse coach. Mr. Lodge currently resides in the Boston area with his 
family. 

Richard Garner- Secretary and Treasurer 

Mr. Garner has been an integral part of Pivotal Group's management team for more 
than a decade and is responsible for overseeing the accounting and finance 
requirements of Pivotal and its portfolio ventures. 

As a Certified Public Accountant, he has more than 20 years of accounting, finance and 
general business experience, including 10 years as a consultant, auditor and business 
advisor with the national CPA firms of Ernst & Young and Kenneth Leventhal. 



He enjoys community service, including serving as an active youth leader with the Boy 
Scouts of America to help shape the lives of America's youth. 

Mr. Garner received a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from Northern Arizona 
University. 

Ben Edmond- Chief Revenue Officer 

Mr. Edmond is Chief Revenue Officer at Global Capacity, with responsibility for all 
aspects of Global Capacity's revenue generation, including sales and marketing. Mr. 
Edmond has more than 15 years of experience in the telecommunications industry, 
encompassing broad expertise in the areas of sales, marketing and managerial 
experiences. Mr. Edmond joined Global Capacity in 2012. Prior to joining Global 
Capacity, Mr. Edmond was President of Sales and Marketing at Fiberlight, where he 
led a national carrier and enterprise sales team in 15 metro markets and conducted 
daily operations in customer and account development and service as well as 
implementation of product development and all marketing activities. 

Prior to joining Fiberlight, Mr. Edmond owned Telecom Inventory, a consulting firm 
focusing on services for large enterprises requiring better access and use of 
telecommunications information. Mr. Edmond's telecom experience includes eight years 
with Xspedius Communications (formerly ACSI), where he held several leadership 
positions. 

Mr. Edmond holds a M.S. in International Business from St. Louis University and a B.S. 
in International Business & Finance from Northeastern University. 

Phil Doyle - Chief Information Officer 

Phil Doyle is Chief Information Officer of Global Capacity, responsible for the 
development and management of all proprietary Global Capacity systems and data, 
including One Marketplace. Mr. Doyle has over 15 years of experience in systems and 
data resource management, successfully leading development teams and facilitating 
innovative software solutions for the telecommunications industry. A co-founder of 
Magenta netlogic, he conceived and developed the core systems that are the 
foundation of One Marketplace. 

Prior to co-founding Magenta netlogic, Mr. Doyle held several positions, including 
Managing Director, at LANalysis and netFusion Limited. He began his career with ICI in 
a network and systems engineering role. 

Mr. Doyle is an engineering graduate of Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK. 
He resides in Manchester with his wife and two children, where he enjoys cycling, 
surfing and walking. 

A/76311220 



Craig Magerkurth • Chief Knowledge Officer 

Craig Magerkurth is Chief Knowledge Officer of Global Capacity, responsible for all 
systems and data that power the business. He brings over 18 years of experience in 
developing, building and managing complex, technology-based solutions for multiple 
industries. Most recently, he served as Vice President of Technology Programs at the 
Rise Group, where he had oversight of network and video surveillance programs such 
as Operation Virtual Shield, a Homeland Defense initiative in Chicago. 

Previously, Mr. Magerkurth served as Chief Information Officer at Universal Access, 
where he managed the initial build-out of the Universal Transport Exchanges (UTX), 
and was instrumental in the development and deployment of the Universal Information 
Exchange (UIX) and Universal Solutions Exchange (USX). Through merger, these 
solutions ultimately became key components of what today is Global Capacity's One 
Marketplace. Mr. Magerkurth has previously served in executive roles for American 
Traffic Solutions and Mobility Technologies, in addition to serving as Chief Information 
Officer for 20-20 Technologies. He began his career in the United States Army Corp of 
Engineers. 

Mr. Magerkurth is a graduate of the United States Military Academy at West Point, 
where he served as President of his class. He holds a Masters of Science in 
Engineering Management from the University of Missouri at Rolla. Mr. Magerkurth 
currently resides in the Austin, TX area with his family. 

John Nannenhorn • Senior Vice President of Finance 

As Senior Vice President of Finance for Global Capacity, John Nannenhom is 
responsible for directing all aspects of Global Capacity's Finance, Accounting, Internal 
Control, Treasury, Human Resources, Legal and Administrative affairs. He brings over 
20 years of comprehensive, in-depth, multi-industry experience. 

Most recently, Mr. Nannenhorn served as Vice President/Controller at AirCell, where he 
played an integral role in building the company's Finance Department from the ground­
up. He was instrumental in defining and deploying core accounting processes as well 
as hiring, developing and mentoring a top-performing financial team. Previously, Mr. 
Nannenhorn served as Executive Director of Finance at ConferencePius and held 
several executive roles within prominent corporations including LANSA, Baan, SAP, 
Memorex Telex and Ryobi. As Chief Financial Officer at LANSA, he was instrumental in 
implementing new accounting and reporting systems as well as crafting and deploying 
mission-critical pricing and business model policies. Mr. Nannenhorn began his career 
as a Senior Accountant with Friedman, Eisenstein, Raemer & Schwartz, LLP. 

Mr. Nannenhorn holds a Masters of Business Administration in Finance and Bachelor of 
Science in Accountancy from Northern Illinois University's College of Business in 
DeKalb, Illinois. He currently resides in the greater Chicago area. 
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Jeremy Kissel - General Counsel 

Jeremy Kissel is General Counsel at Global Capacity, responsible for all legal and 
compliance functions of the company. Prior to joining Global Capacity in 2012, Mr. 
Kissel worked for a boutique communications law firm in Washington, D.C. and 
Chicago, assisting companies with regulatory compliance, commercial transactions, 
and representing clients before federal government agencies and the United States 
Congress. While serving as both an Attorney-Advisor in the Policy Division of the 
Federal Communications Commission's Media Bureau and Acting Legal Advisor to the 
Chief of the Media Bureau, Mr. Kissel was involved in all aspects of regulatory 
proceedings at the agency. 

Prior to joining the Federal Communications Commission, Mr. Kissel worked in a United 
States Senate Leadership Office in Washington, D.C. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Kissel 
was a litigator in Miami, Florida, where he concentrated his practice on insurance 
defense, insurance coverage, and bad faith matters. 

Mr. Kissel holds a Bachelor of Science (B.S.) from Florida State University, a Juris 
Doctor (J.D.) from Nova Southeastern University, Shepard Broad Law Center, and a 
Master of Laws (LL.M) from American University's Washington College of Law. Mr. 
Kissel resides in Chicago with his wife. 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

APPLICATION OF ) 
) 

GC PIVOTAL, LLC d/b/a Global Capacity ) 
) 

FOR AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ) 
COMPETITIVE FACILITIES-BASED AND RESOLD) 
LOCALEXCHANGEANDINTEREXCHANGE ) 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES ) 
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA ) 

EXHIBIT D 

Financial Statements 

Docket No. ---

CONFIDENTIAL - SUBMITTED UNDER SEAL 

Please note that the financial statements attached as Exhibit D to the original copy of 
the application are proprietary and confidential , and thus, is being submitted under seal. 
Applicant respectfully requests that the information be accorded confidential treatment and that it 
not be made a part of the public record or otherwise be made available for public disclosure. 
This information is provided in a sealed envelope attached only to the original copy of the 
Application. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AFFIRMATION 

The undersigned, F. Francis Najafi, President, and Richard Garner, Secretary 
and Treasurer of Global Capacity each affirm that the financial statements provided as 
Exhibit D to the Application for Authority to Provide Telecommunications Company 
Service in the State of Florida are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, 
information, and belief. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed this '2-t day of September. 2014. 

ichard Garner 
GC Pivotal , LLC d/b/a Global Capacity 
Secretary and Treasurer 
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STATE OF ARIZONA 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA 

§ 
§ 
§ 

VERIFICATION 

I, Richard Garner, state that I am Secretary and Treasurer ofGC Pivotal, LLC; that I am 

authorized to make this Verification on behalf of GC Pivotal, LLC; that the foregoing filing was 

prepared under my direction and supervision; and that the contents are true and correct to the 

best of my knowledge, information, and belief. 

Secretary and Treasurer 
GC Pivotal, LLC 

Sworn and subscribed before me this __lj_ day of September, 2014. 

M . . . ~',-1 Jr' ;J._u/0 y con1ffiiSSIOn exptres _....:...,_-t _""_fi-___;_.....,>4Y----
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REDACTED 

0 Grant Thornton 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIEDPUBUC ACCOVN1'ANTS 

Members-
GC Pivotal, ILC 

Aacit • Tu • Advisory 

G11niThllilliGIILLP 
1~w J- Bou1mrU. 20111 F1oo! 
cNcago,IL 60&o4-2681 
f_312JS6.0200 
1'3125854719 

-.~ 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GC Pivotal, ILC (a Delaware limited 
liability company) and Subsidiary (together, the Cc:nnpany) .as .of December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011, and 
the related consolidated statement of.opmtions, c~ in tn~mbers' eqUity and cash. flaw& .for the period 
from May 16, 2011 (date of inception) througl;t Decelllbet :>1. 2011. Th~se fJnanttials~em<:nts are the 
responsibility of the Company's DWllgement, Out rellponslbility istC;> express· an <!pinion on th~e ~ 
statementll based on our audits; 

We conducted our audits in a~rdance w:ll;h auditing standardS generaOy. accepted in the United States of 
America as established by the American ln&titute of Cutilled PUblic- Accountants. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable ll$$tira.nce· about whether the financial statements" are 
free of material misstatement. Art audit includes considention ofintemal conttolover financialteporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures thilt Ate appropriate in the circllrtlstances, but not for the pwpose of 
expressing an opiniotl on the effectiveness of the Company's intelNl control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Ari audit also irli:b1des ex3.tnining, on ·a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the flilandal .. stilteiniilits, assessing the accounting principles Used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well. as c:Valuating the ovcrnll financial stateMent 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for out opinion. 

In our opinion, the co.nsolidated fmancial statements. s:efeo:ed to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of GC Pivotal, ILC aq.d Subsidiary as of December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for the: pel.iod from May 16,2011 (date of inception) through 
December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Chicago, Illinois 
June 28, 2012 

G11nt Thomtan UP 
us.,.,.ba"l""oiG<IIIIT~.......,.Ltl 



GC .Piy:otal, U.C and Subsidiuy 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEE'I'S 
I>ec:embet 31,2011lusd May 16, 2011 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and ~b ~quivaler~ts 
Rcstriaed cash 

ASSETS 

REDACTED 

Accounts uc;ei:voa1>le. net ofallowanc;~ of~ and. at 
Dceembu 3:1, 2011 and May 16, 20ll, re$J!cctivcly 

PJ;Cp~d t;XjlC:nSCS -and pther current assets 

T ota.( !:UUCnt as. sets 

PROPERTY AND EqtllPMENT,.NET 

INl'ANGIBLE.~SE'IS, NET 

GOODWILL 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LlABIUTIES AND MEMBERS'· EQUITY 

c~ UABILITIE$ 
Cw;rc:nc.poztion oflol'lg-tcitn debt 
Accounts payable . 
Accrued expens« 
Defeued rev~ue 
Accrued c:onilhitments. and oorttingencii:s 

Total cuuent liabilities 

LONG-TERM UABILITIES 
Deferred revenue 
Notes payable 

Totallong-tt:tm liabilitie~ 

Total liabilities 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Class A members' units, par value-; 1 unit issued authorized 

and outstanding at December 31,2011 and May 16,2011 
Additional paid-in .capital 
AcC\Ullulated other cnmpn:hensive loss 
Accumulated deficit 

Total member.;' equity 

TOTAL UABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLC and,Subl!idiary 
CONs<>LIDATED StAtEMEN't OF OPERAUONS 
Period from May 16, 2Q11 (C:la~ of inception) through December lt, 2Qll 

Revenues 

Cost of goods and services sold 

Gross profit 

Operating expenses 
Compensation 
Travd and entertainment 
Facility-rea ted com 
Marketing 
Outside ~ervic~s 
Insurance 
Bad debt expense 
Asset,managemet~tJee 

Deprc~cion and at:nortization 
()Uler 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operlltions 

Other expense 
Interest 
Other 

Total other expense 

Other comprehensive loss 
Foreign currency translation adjustment 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLC .and Subsidialy 
CONSOLIDATED STA.'IEMENT OF Cl:IANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Period from May 16, 2011 (date of inception) throUgh December 31, 2011 

Balance, May 16, 2011 .(date of 
inception) 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 

&llance, Dccanber.31, 2011 

~sA ,Adwtio~ 
. ~·units . . paid·in 

: Sllates · · · · Atriount · r:apil21 
~ ~~~~~ 

1 s . 

= 
s~ 

The accompanying notes are. an integral part of this statement. 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivotal0 LLC .and Sllbsidiary 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FWWS 
P~riod from May l~; 2011 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011 

Cash flOWIS £rom operating activities 
Nedoss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by 

operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Bad dcbt~cnsc, net of recoveries 
Ch~s in operating assets and liabilities 

_Accounts receivable 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses· 
Deferred revenue 
Defe.aed revenue -long term 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flowS. from investing activities 
Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Payments for restricted cash 
Loan repayments 

Net cash used in financing activities 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENtS 

Ca5h and cash equi~ents, beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 

Cash paid during the year for 
Interest 

Non-cash investing and fmancing activities 
Purchase of property and equipment through payables 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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REDACTED 

GC J;'ivo~aJ, ;LLC and Subsi~ . 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCII\L STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011 

NOTE A- BACKGROUND AN,D BASIS ()F P~SEN"t,A.1'tON 

GC Pivotal, ll.C d/b I a Global Capacity, ILC and Subsidiary (together; Global Capacity or the Cmnpany) is 

a telecommunications information and logistics company. that :improves the .efficiency and reduces the cost of 

obtaining and managing access networlts gtobally. thtot!g4 its One Mn.ketplal:C_Ac:cess Ex~llange. the 
Company connects customers and suppliers in an automated exchange platfOim. Global Capacity ddi\re.rs itsc 
solutions to purpose-built integrators, global caniers. managed sentil:e providers: and entetprise c:UstomeiS: 
globally. 

Global Capacity was fonned on May 16, 2011, via a purchaSe of -s.ubstantiall.y- ;Ill of the a·ssets of Capital 

Growth Systems by Pivotal Global Capacity; U.C. On Juir 23~ 2010, Capital Grbwth Systems and Its 

subsidiaiies (together, the Deb tots} filed .for proteCtion Ulldl:.t Chal)tet U,ln.]}elitwate banlauptt:y:court.. The 

subsidiaries. included Wete Glo hal c~paciry Group. lite., 20/20 Technologies, Inc., C'llpttal. Growth Systems, 

Inc~, CentrePath, Inc., Global Capacity Direct, U.C f/k/>a VU1c0 ~ USA, Il..C. 21)2Q Tec;hnologies. I, 

Il.C; NEXVU Tec:lu~ologies, LLC, FNS 2007; In~ f/k/a Fton~ N¢~or~ m~s. Cotp;; Capit~ 

Oto<;Vth Acquisition, Inc. and Global Capac,ity Holdco, U.C. On January '26, 20U, l:h¢ t;ale ()f' sqbs~tially all 
of t,he asset.• of the Oebtots to Pivotal Global Capadty, lJ~C or i't& supsi~IJ (GC Pivotal, LLC) Wlls 

~pproved by the bankruptcy court. 

NOTE B- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQNnNG POLICIES 

PtiJJciples of Conwlidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statement& include all of the accounts. of GlObal Capacity and its 

wholly owned UK subsidill!}', Magenta netLogic, Ltd. (Magenta), All intercompany ~ccount$ lind transactions· 

have been eliminated in consolidation. Assets and liabilities of the Company's foteign.subsidiaij are translated 

at year-end exchange rates. Amounts in the consolidated statement o£ operations ate translated 'using average 

monthly exchange rates during the yea:r. Gains and losses reSulting froin translating fOreign c:urtency fl.llancial 

statements ate recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within accWnU!ated othet. 

comprehensive loss. The consolidated financial statements and notes have been prepared in ~cconlance with 
accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Use of Estimares 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GMP requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported ;unounts of assets and liabilities. These estimates also 

affect the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the fitlancial statements and the 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the. reporting period. Actual results could differ from 

those estimates. 

Signilicant Risks and Uncertainties 

The Company's operations are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including those associated with 

fluctuations in operating results, funding expansion, strate~c alliances, managing rapid grawth and expansion, 

relationships witl1 suppliers, regulatory issues, competition, the economy, technology trends and evolving 

industry standards. 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLC and Subs.idiaty . . .. 
NOTES '1'0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .. CONTINUED 
December 31,2011~nd May 16,2011 . . . . 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers aU highly liquid iriStrtunentS pu~chased with 1111 originjl)maturity of thtee months or 
less to be cash equivalents. The Compapy cOntinually monitors $ ()ositions with, and the credit quality of, 
the flnanc:kl institutions with which rt ihveS~; 

Restricted Cash 

Ceruin cash amounts arc. rcsttif;tai as to use·. ana are classified outside ot cash. and cash equivalents. As of 
December. 31, 2011, restricted.cish o includes· in cash hdd in an escrow account for a 
constrUctive trust litigation case (sec nate I<) and io :cash on deposidn resCryl: accounts related to a 
secu.ring a cmlit limit on the .Company's . c:otpo.rit.Ci :ciliJ$. · :rhc :rerriainibg testricred ca4h comprises 
relating to cash on. deposit in :reSt:tve for:letteu ofcredit. As of May 16, 2011, restricted cash 

includes I· . . . in cas~ ~eld· han e. s .. erow accoun. t. f.o.· r.a con.~tructive ~st ~tion case .(see note 
••• 

1 

in cash on depoSJtin i'detve; aceounts related tO seeutmg a credit !i'mit on the Company's corporate 
cards. The remaining restricted ash comprl'S'es elating to tash on deposit in rese.tv¢ for letters of 
credit 

Conc~ntradons ofCrediOfisk 

Financial instruments that potetitWly s'Qpject the C¢mp;my to a c:oric;entration pfa::eilit ~k con$lst principally 
of cash and cash equivalents and accounts. receivable. A11 aslt and cash equivalent$ are with creditworthy 
financial institutiolll!. At times during the periods presented,. the Company had funds in non'-'interest~beaiing 
transaction aecoliiltS thllt are fully insured, by th~. Fideralpeposit Insurance Corporation. Management 
believes the Company is not exposed to significant credit risk due to the financial position of the. depository 
institutions in which those deposits 2re.bcld .. 

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation~ but generally does not require collateral to support 
receivables. For the period from May 16. 2011 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011, one cilstomer 
accounted for,,o of the Companrs tot.al revenues. As of December 31 2()11, three cilstotners made up 

I Yo, •I• and Yo, respectively, of accounts rece1. ·vab!e. As of May 16, 2011, three customers made up •/•, 
Yo and./o, respectively, of accounts receivable; 

Property and Equipment and Depreciadon 

Property and equipment, including leasehold improvements, as of December 31, 2011, are stated at their fair 
value at date of acquisition less accumulated dep.r:eciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization 
of propetty and equipment is computed principally using tbe stnight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives for owned assets, which are as follows: 

Asset description 

Computer hardware 
r .easehold improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Office equipment 

Life 

2-4 years 
2 years 

2- 5 years 
3 years 

Improvements to leased property arc amortized over the shoncr of the useful life of the improvement or the 
term of the related lease. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. 

9 



REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLC. and Subsjdiary 
NOTES TO CQNSOUDA'I'EDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS· CONI'INUED 
December 31, 2011 and May 161 2011 

Eair Value of FinanciaiJnstruments 

Tho Company's fintncial instnunents include cash and cash equivalents, acco.unts ·receivable, accounts 
payable and notes payable. The c:wyUtg values ofcasb and cash equivalents, accowits receivable and 
accounts payable 8fJptt1xhnate their estimated fait. valuu ba$ed on the attributes ofthe instruments .or their 
quoted priCes, unless ·stated, ·because of the shocHctin .maturity of these· instrutiients. Thl!: fait values of·the 
COmpany's borrowin~ under its vatilible-rate agreements ap{'ro.Ximate their fait Vlllucs Unless stated. The fair 
values of the note$ payable teflect the lll3rket' values for similar obligations considering their maturities, cre~t 
qualicy and market interest rates. 

FaU: val\)C; ~ ti~rted as the: piice .that .would be received .. to. sell. an asset ot paid to transfer. a liability in the 
princif>al. o.r J:i:!oJt advantageous. mirket for the as.set or liability in an ord¢ly .transaction between market 
participwts atthe 'Qleasurement date. The Financial AccoWJting St!Qia.rds Board has ~stablished 11 fair v;J.lue 
hierarchy dial: ~uites an e11tj.1y to ·~ the ·l}se o( obser:vlible inputs and ~· the use of 
unobservable inpUt& when meas~. fair value, attd also establishes the following thtee levels of input'$ that 
trulY be used to measure fait vah.e; 

I.&l!d.l- Quoted. prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

l&id.2 - Obscmtble inputs .othe.r dWJ. Lc:Vd l priCes, $UCb as quoted prices fot sinillat assets or liabilities: 
quoted ma,tket prices in ~keu that ate not active; or model-derived· valuations or othet inputs that are 
observable pr. cari be cou:oborate<i lzy obswable market data for substantially the full tetm of the assets or 
liabilities, · · · 

~ - Unobst:rlable fuputs that ate supported by little or no market activity and thatare significant to the 
fair value of the assets at .liabilities. 

GoodwiU.andlormgible Assets 

Goodwill reptesents the excess of purchase price paid over net assets acquired in a business combination. 
Goodwill is not 11m0rtized. Intangible assets with finite useful lives ate generally amortized on a snaight~line 
basis over the periods benefited. Goodwill is tested annually for impainnent and whenever events or 
circumstances change, such as a significant adverse chllnge in business climate or the decision to sell a 
business, that would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. If the carrying 
values of goodwill exceed its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized. 1be evaluation of impairment 
involves comparing the estimated fair value of the Company ro the recorded value of goodwill. There was no 
impairment of goodwill during the period from May 16, 2011 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011. 

The Company recognizes an acquired intangible asset apart from goodwill whenever the intangible asset 
arises from contrActual or other legal rights, or when it can be separated or divided from the acquired entity 
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or in combination with a related 
contract, asset or liability. The intangible assets are amol:tUed over their expected life as follows: 

Asset description 

Tradcmaxk/trade name 
Software 
CL\1 technology 
Database 
Customer relationships 

10 

Life 

20 years 
3 years 

12 years 
8 years 

12 years 



REDACTED 

GC Pivotal. LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTs- CONTINUED 
December 31, 2011 and M2y 16, 2011 

Impairment losses are recognized if the carrying aiilOUtJ.t of an intangible subject to .. a.trtortization. is not 
recoverable .&om expected future cash flows and its Cllttying amount eXCeeds its fait value. No such. losses 
Wl!re ·r«ognized in the period from May 16,. 2011 (date ofinception} throug!t Deceniber 31, 20U. 

Long-lived Assets 

Long-Jived assets are tCll:iewed for impairment whenever events Cit changes :in citcurrlsta:nces inc:ii~te that the. 
cartying amollll,t. ofass~ ~Y<nQt l;>e recpveral:!le. The cri~ for det~g ~t for s:u~:h long­
liVed assets to be held and. used is determined by comparing the a~ value. of ihc:Se long-lived '<!S!iets to b~ 
held and U$Cd to mitriagement'& best estimate of futu(e tmdiscounted cash flows expected to res:ult £rom the 
use· oHhese assets. !('the assets are considered to· be lmpllited, the 'impal.tment to be recognized is ~sured 
by the· amount by which the cattying amount ?f the assets exceeds, the. f~ value ofthe,issets. The esfiinated 
fa.ir:.nJue of the assets is· mearoted by estimating the present va.luc.ofthe future disco:unted c;ash flows .to be 
gerrented. There was no imp~t of long-lived assets dutibg the period from May 16, 2011 (date of 
inception} through December 31, 2011. 

Kevenue Recognition 

The Company recotpizes revenue for provisioning and reselling. of.relecommunica:tion circuits anti from 
suppor~g and monitoring of its CU!ItoO'letS' network. The Com.panyJ:Ccognize$ the revenue when persuaSive 
evidence ,of an arr.wgCtnent exists, d<ilivery or upon: penortnance ·of the service -to customer,; has occ:ut(Cd, 
the price is fiXed or dcteimlriab~. a,nd collectibility is reasombly ass.ured. Defc:rted reven~,~e' repres~ts cash 
received fro-!11 clients or blllingsJor whicl) services have n,ot yet been Jendered or earned. 

The Company also provides engineering services to design and implement private. transport netWorks . The 
Company uses the input proportional perfottnanc:e method, which approximates the ratio of totBl. input 
efforts :completed to date to the total estiinated input effort, to .recognize .the revenue. The Company bills the 
engineering services as :the serVices are completed on a monthly basis. As such, there are no billings.in excess 
ofteventieS .or revenues in excess of billings as of December 31,201 hnd May 16, 2011. 

Account& Receivable, Net 

Accounts receivable balances are stated at amounts due from the Cl.lStomer net- of an allowance for doubtful 
accounts. Credit extended is based on an evaluation of the customer's financial· condition and is granted to 
qllalificd customers on an unsecured basis. 

The Company's standard tenns requite payment within 30 days of the date of the invoice. The Company 
treats invoices as past due when they remain unpaid, in whole or in part, beyond the payment time set forth 
in the applicable serVice contract. 

The Company determines its allowance for doubtful accounts by consitlering a number of factors, including 
the length of time trade receivables are past due, the customer's current ability to pay its obligation to the 
Company, and the condition of the general economy and the industry' as a whole. Specific. reserves are also 
established on a ca~e-by-case basis by management. The Company writes off accounts after a determination 
by management that the amounts at issue are no longer likely to be collected, following the exercise of 
reasonable collection effor~s. and upon management's determination that the costs of pursuing collection 
outWeigh the likelihood of recovery. Payments subsequendy n:ceived on such receivables are credited to the 
allowance for doubtful accounts. As of Deccmber31, 2011 and May 16, 2011, the total allowance for 
doubtful accounts was and., respectively. 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUED 
December 31, 2011 and May 16, 20U 

Accounts receivable allowanceli 

Deferred Revenue 

Balance, 
Mayl6, 

2011 

N ct additions 
charged to .¢o$t 
and expenses 

Accounts 
written off 

Balance, 
December 31, 

2011 

The Company ea.ms sales n:ven:ue ftom proViding its customc:n ongoing acc:e&s to data services and the 
installation of .those services. Advance billings are recorded as deferred ·revenue in. the month prior to 
delivery. Deferred reveriueJs gene.rally short-term iii natute. 

Reseateh and Development Costs 

Expnditures rnaqe for rese11tch and devdopment are charged to expense as incurred. Approximatdy 
of research aru;l development costs ate included~ compemlitioli in the ac;companying consolidated 

statementofopetations for the period from May Hi, 2011 {date of inc;eption)tluough December 31, 2011.. 

Income Taxes 

The.Companyis·ll!1llC.taXed as a.partnership under the. U.S. Internal Revenue code and similar provisions 
of state :income tax rules. Unda these, provisions, the members of the Company are taxed on their 
proportionate share of the Company's taxable income. Income or loss generated by the Company flows 
through to the menibcrs' income tax returns. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state income taxes has 
been included in these consolidated fln3llcial statements. 

The Company recognizes the benefit of a. tax position only afta determining th:u the. rdevant tn authority 
would more likely than not sustain the. pt>sition following an audit; For tax positions meeting the more likdy 
than not threshold, the amount recognized in. the fi.Oanckl statements is the largest benefit that has a greater 
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the rdevant tax authority. Interest and 
penalties; if incurred, are recognized in the statement of operations. The Company had no liabilities related 
to uncertain tax positions at, Decembc:r 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011. 

Accrued Carrier Expenses 

The Company accrues estimated charges owed to its suppliers for services which is included in accrued 
expenses in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company bases this accrual on the supplier contract, the 
individual service order eJCccutcd with the supplier for that service, and the length of time of the service. 

Other Comprehensive Loss 

In addition to net loss, comprehensive loss includes charges or credits to equity occurring other than as a 
result of transactions with member.;. For the Company, ·this consists of foreign currency translation 
adjustments. 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiaty 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUED 
Dec.ember 3i, 2011 and May 16, 2011 . . 

NOTE C- FORMA'l'ION OF BUSINESS 

NOTED- RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into transactions with Pivotal Group; Accrued 
payables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet include amounts owed to this entity of- as of 
December 31, 2011. Expenses related to management fees and legal expenses totaled - during the 
period The management fee is charged monthly. The Company has loans outstanding to two 
directors of Magenta (sec note J). 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
N.OTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CO:N'l'lNUED 
December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011 

NOTE E- COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN BALANCE sHEET ACCOUNTS 

Accounts receivable as of December 3.1, 2011 and May 16 2011, consist o£ the following: 

.Acwunts receivable- trade 
Unbilled receivables 
Vendor receivable 

. __ ---·- __ ·- ___ -~~ allo"!ll;;l~e for_gq~tJt:ful ~~i;QliP~---

Accounts receivable, net 

December 31, 

.ZOU 

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011, consist of the following: 

Computer hardware 
Leasc:hold.improvements 
Machiilery and equipment 
Office equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (expen~} 

Property and equipment, net 

Dec_em.ber 31, 
2011 

Accmed expenses as of December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011, consist ofrbe following: 

Accrued carrier payable 
Accrued sales and regulatory tax 
AcenJed employee salacy and benefits 
Accrued other 

Total accrued expenses 

NOTE F- INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

December 31, 
2011 

The Company's intangible assets have useful lives thar vary generally over three. to 20 years. 
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G~ fivQt~ LLC and Subsidi11.-y 
NOTES TO dlNSOLIDATBI)BINt\NCIALSTA'l'EMEN"''S • CON't1Nl1ED 
December 31, 20111lild May 1,, 2011 

The Company's lP.tangible wets subj~ to amortization as of Oet:ember 31, 2011 a.nd May 16, 200, 
comprise the following: · 

eLM technology 
Datab.a~e 

Customer .tdationships 
Trade name 
C'..omputer software 

Less accumulated amortization 

Intangible assets, tlC!t 

Deceml:>er 31, 
2011 

Mlly 16, 
2011 

Amortiz. ,ation e,xpense .. for iQ:rl)le aasects (pt the p~ ~ M~y 16, 2on (da:te ol inctpt.icm) through 
December 31, 2_011, was r 

)'ears ending Qecembcr lh 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
Thereafter 

NOTE G ·FOREIGN OPERATIONS 

Total assets relating to foreign operatioos included in the consolidated financial statements as of 
December 31, 2011 and May 16, 2011, were * nd tespectivdy. 

NOTE H • BORROWINGS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Letter of Credit 

The Company maintains a- letter of credit for the benefit of the landlord for office space in Tllinois in 
lieu of a security deposit, and a ~ letter of credit for the benefit of the Tc11nessee Regulatory Authority. 
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GC.Pivo!lll, LU; and $ubsidiary . 
NOTES to CONSOUPA'I'ED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'l'$ ~· CON'l'INUED 
December 31, 201~ and May 16, 2011 

NOTE I- ;EM.PLOYEE BEN"Em PLANS 

4(}1(k) Plan 

Under the Company's 401 {k) plan, all employees who ate eligible to participate in tQe 401 (k) plan are en tided. 
to make 'tl!X-dd'en;ed cootribuUQns subject to IRS limitations. The Campany cuutt~tly does not match the 
employc:C!s contJ;ibutions made 

The Co.ttlplUlY has tWo Joan$ outstanding •Wftb dfrectots of the Company M of Deterober 31, 2011 ao<J 
May 16, 2011. These amountS ate all unsecured and. due on demand The amouna beadnterest at-"­
The loans were.fro:m~ 1, 2003 to November 1, 2013. Bothloans were paid. off early in 2012 

Current J?orlion ofnotes payable 
Long-term portion ofnotes. payable 

NOTE K- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Leases 

Decembet31, 
201i 

-
May16, 

2011 

-
The Con:ipaoy bas operating lease agrec:rne'nts relating to certain facilities expiring through July 2018. Rent 
expense on operating leues for the period from May 16, 2011 (date of inception) through December 31, 

1011,was •• l 

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of December 31, 2011 until July 1, 2018, are 
approximately as follows: 

Years ending December 31. 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
Thereafter 

$ 
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GC Pivotal; LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA'ffiMENTS- CONTINUED 
December 31,. 2011 and Ma:r 16, 2011 

ContractiJal·Commitmenrs 

Subsequent to December 31; 2011, the Company emered into 11 supplier agreement on Miu:cll20,l012, with 
purchase obligations of in year one; in year two, and in year thtee 
associated with the telecoJi'illiUfiicationii services that the Company bas contt'llcted to purchase from its 
vendors. If the Company does not purchase the minimum obligated amount, the supt>lier will Charge the 
Company the difference between the . minimum annual pbligated amount and the amounts paid in 
td~eommunicatio~ s~tes to the supplier for the commitment peJ;iod. 

Contingencies - Legal J'r.oceedings 

The Company is subJect to lCg.~l proceedings arising m the ordinary cour,~e of business~ Tn the opinion of 
managemellt; the ultima.te disposition of those matters will not. b~Ne a material adveu;e effect on the 
Company's consolidated financiai position; J:C$ults of .Q~tions ()J: liquidity. No maretial reserves· have been 
established for aaypending legal pr«eedlng, either because aloss is not; probable or the amount of a loss, if 
any, caiitiotbe reasonably estimated. 

NOTE L- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Company evaluated its December 31, 2011, fina.ncW statements foJ: subsequent events through June 28, 
2012, the date the financial statements were avaibble to. be issued There wci:c no other subscqilent events 
besides the ones discloSed in the notes above that require recognition or additional disclosure in the financial 
statements. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDI:NT CERTIFED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Members 
GCPivotal, LLC 

hi lhamloi!LLP 
175 W Jacksiln fliHMvMI,2Ildl FlOOr 
Cl*:ago, 11.608()4.2687 

T 312.856.o20a 
F'312.565;471!l 
G~UlOmtilll.corn 
HIIJn/Gr.t\ITIIonltl.nUS 
IWitler.taM«llartrnofii[I)IIUS 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GCPivotal,U.C (a 
Delaware limited liability compan~ and Subsidiary (together, the (bmpanj), which comp!Ue 
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related 
consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, changes in members' equity and cash flows for 
the year ended December 31, 2012; and. the period from May 16; 2011 (date of inception) 
through December31, 2011, and. the related notes m the financial statements. 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 
Management is responsible for the prt:p3llltion and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statementS in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements 
mat are free from material misstatement, whether due tD fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our auditS. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statementS. lhe procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or ermr. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's prep3llltion and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circmmtances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal controL Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

lhtllltanii<IO u.P 
U S. rrMrllber hm of Q;nt Thornb'l ~tarnalionallkt 
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reasonableness of signifkant accounting estimates: made by management, as well as eval~.~ating 
the overall presentation of the comolldated fmandal sta~ments. 

We believe that the audit evidence 'We have obtained is sufficient and appropriate· to provide a 
botsis for our audit opinion. ' 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the comolidated f!Jlancial Sl:a~ Jd'em.d tO above present f3irly, in aU 
material respects. the flliailcial. positi<>n of GC Pivotal, llC and Subsidiaty as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011, and the .re.suhs of theil' opep.tion.s and their· cash flow; fQr the year endeq 
Decembc!r31, 201~1 and the period from May 16, 2011 (date of inception) through 
December31, 2011, in accotdallce with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America., 

0Ucag9, Illinois 
May1,2013 

Qr 11111ltanotoo L1P 
U.S -lnnoiGianllho<-lnlornalionaiUd 
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GC Piwtal, LLC and Subsidiary 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE Sl;iEETS 
December 31, 

CUI\RENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restrict:ed cash 

ASSETS 

AcCOI.Dlts m:eivable, net of allowances of-and- at 
Dcce~rlt, 2012 and2011; ~\lcly 

P~paid ~es .md «h~~nfassets 

Totaleunent asS(!ts 

PROPERTY.ANO:EQUIPMENT, NET 

INTANGIBLE ASSET~;NET 

GOODWill 

Tctr AI. ASSETS 

LIABILITIESAND'MEMBERS'EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Curteiltportl.ort oflong-terrn debt 
Accounis pa:y.i.b~ 
Accrued eXpCilSCS 
Defemd revenue 
Accrued con:unltrnenu ar1d contingencies 

Total. current liabilities 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred revenue 
N:nes payable 

Totallong-tenn liab~ies 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

Totalliabili~ 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Oass A m:mbers' units, par value ~; 1 unit issued, authorized and 

outstanding at, December 31,2012 and 2011 
Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Accumulated deficit 

Total members' equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 

The accompanying notes are· an integral part of these statements. 
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GC Pivotal, LLCand Subsidiasy 
CONSOLIPATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
'Year ended I>ecem~r 31, 2012, and period fnJm 
May 16, 2011 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011 

Revenues 

Cost of goods and services sold 

Gross profit 

Operating expenses 
Compensation 
Compensation - Iong-tetm incentive plan 
T,lllvel and emertainment 
Facilit)'"~d costs 
Marketing 
Outside services 
Insuriiice 
Bad debt {recovery} expeme 
Asset management fee 
Depreciation aocl amonization 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

Other expenSe 
Interest 
Other 

Total other expense 

NET LOSS 

Other comprehensive loss 
Foreign cum:ncy translation adjustment 

Total comprehensive loss 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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GC Piwtal, LLC and Subsidiaey 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENfS QF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Year ended December 31, 2012; and period hom 
May 16.2011 (date ofirx:eption) through DecemberJ1, 2011 

Accumulated 
Gass A Additional other 

men:tbe!S'wntS paid-in Accumulated comprehensive 
Slw-es Amount. ·· capital def~eit loss Total ----- ~~~ --~~~ ~------ ~~----- --------

Balance, May 16, 2011 (date of 
int:eption) l $ • $ $ 

Foreign currency tr.lnSiation 
adjustment .. - -Net loss: ! -~ '" .~' 

Balan¢e,Dec:e.aiher Jl, 2011 1 ~ -Foreign currencyuanslation -adjU$tlllCilt -~ 
Distnbutions -:. -: 
Net loss. ::. - _____;:, 

Bal:mcc,Oeccrnber 31,2012 l $ -- -

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statements. 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended December 31, 2012, and period from 
May 16, 2011 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011 

Cash &ws from operating activities 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile nedoss to net cash provided 

by oper:acing a~vities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Bad debt (recoveries) expense 
Deferred compensation 
Cllanges in oper:ating assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Other cumnt assets 
Attounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 
Deferred revenue - long term 
Accrued commitments and contingencies 

Net cash provided byoper:ating activities 

Cash flowdrominvesting activities 
:Purchase of fixed :tssets 
Pw¢hase of computer softw:u:e 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows frontfi:nancing activities 
Cllanges in restricted cash 
Loan repayments 
Distribution to member.; 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Effect of exchange ra.te change 

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 

Cash paid during the period for 
Interest 
Taxes 

Non-cash investing and financing activities 
Purchase of property and equipment through payables 
Acquisition of property and equipment through capital leases 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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GC Pivotal, LLCand Subsidiary . . 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE A· BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENT.ATION 

GC Pivotal, llC d/b/a Global Capacity, LLC and Subsidiary (together, Global Capacity or the Compan:» is 
a teleconununicatio.QS infonnation and logistics collipariy~:illlproyes !.he efficiency and reduces the cost of 
obtaining and managing access networks globally. 'fhrough its One Marketplace Access Excbangt: .• the 
Company cOimecu cllStomets and suppliers in an· automated e~ platfonn. Global Qpacity delivers its 
solutions tO pwpose-built integrators, global c.arrle~. managed setvice providers and cntetpnse; customers 
globally. . . . . 

Global Gtpacity was formed on ¥a:Y 20, 2010r as . a limited .liability co~ (llQ Ul1diif the state of 
Delaware statutes and began oper.mons on May 16, 2011. I.Jnder ~ tenns oh:he llC oper.atmg agreement, 
the term of the Coinpaily shall continue t.O exist in perpetUity. Global Cipacityvt.lS fo~d QA~ '16, 2011, · 
via a pun:hase of substantially all· of the assets of<4pital Growtl1 ~ysre.m byPivot;d Global Capacity, U.~ 
On JUly ll; 2010, Capital Growth S:yst.ems and its subsidiaries (~ge#r, the Debtors) filedJQr pmt.ectiog 
under <llapter 11 in ~laware bankruprcy coutt. The. subsidiarie~ · iiu:tuded "\"t'ete Global CApacity Group, 
Inc., 20/20 Technologies, Inc., Gtpital Growth Systems,ltJc.,. QnttiPath; Inc., Global CapaciJ;yD~ct, LLC 
f/kl a Varx:o Direct rnA. ~ 2020 Teclmolo~ I, LL~ NE.XVU Tech0l.ogies1 ~ FNS 2007, .lllc;; 
flkl a Frontrunner Netwozk S}Stems, Cotp.,. Opital G~~th ,Acquisition, Inc. and Global GtpacityHoldco, 
Ll.C. On January 26, 2011, the sale of ,substantially 211 · of the assets of the Debto~ · · t.O PivOtal. Global 
Capacity,.LLC or its subsidiary (GC Pivotal, LLC) was approved bythe bankruptcy c:ourt. 

NOTE B • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANI' ACCOUN'I'INGPOL'lCIES 

Pzindpk• ofCoslloHdatiotl 

The accompanying con.s~lidated financial stat~ments Include an of ~e accounts of GlObal Capacity an~ its 
wholly owned UK subs1diary, Magema.netLopc,Ltd. {Magenta}. All mtercompanyaccounts and transacuons. 
have been eliminated in consolidation. Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign subsidiary are 
tr.anslatcd at year-end exchange l"ates. Amounts in the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss are 
translated using aver.age monthly exchange nates during the )t:at. Gains apd losses resulting from tr.tnslating 
foreign cwn:ncy financial statemen~ are recorded in the accompanying consol.i¢lted balance sheets within 
accwnulated other comprehensive loss. The consolidatec:lfinancial.sta.tements and notes have been prepared 
in accordance with accounting standanis generally accepted in the United States of America {U.S. OAAP). 

U1e o£Bstimate1 

The prepar.ation of financial statements in conformity with US. OAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. These estimates also 
affect the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Sign.ilicant Rj1.b and Unce.rta.itltiel 

The Company's operations are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including those associated with 
fluctuations in operating results, funding expansion, str.ategic alliances, managing r.apid growth and expansion, 

9 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CbNSOLIDA1EDFINANOAL STAtEMENTS- CONTINUED 
December31, 2012and 2011 

relationships with. suppliers, regulatOry. issues, competition, ·the economy. technology ~nds and evolving 
induruystan~. 

Certain cash amourtts ;u-e resttiaed as .to use and m·classified .outside of ca.sn and ca.4 equivalents. As of 
December 31, 2012, restricted <;llSh of . inchules . . . <in cash oil deposit in reserve accountS 
related to·~··· • ll credit llinit on me· CQtnpa:nys' ¢9lJl9rate credit cards, The n:xnairling zestricted cash !$. 

compos. ed. of ·. (ciating·to. ·.·~h .. on de ·sitin·!ESC········ .:vefo~leue.' •rs·.··· o. f cre.dit. .As.'. , ot·.·Oe« .... mber.· ... >.~· 2011. 
rest.n.:tcd c.ash <> .mclude$ :cash held m an esctow accoWlt for a cons~~ trust 
litigation c~e (S¢e no.te K) an· in·~~ OJl de~~ in Je$e.rve accounts related. ·tO·• securing .a credit 
limit on the C.Otnpa:nys Corporate credit cams. The remairiing restricted cash comprise <relating to 

cash on deposit in reserve for letters of credit. 

COilceJJtDtiotJs of Cn:dit IUsl: 

Financial instrwnenu that potentially subject the Company to a concentr2tion of credit riskconsist principally 
of cash and cash equivalents and accountS receivable. All cash and·cash equivalents m :with creditworthy 
financial institutiOns. 

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations, but generally does not require collateral to support 
accoWtts receivable. For the year ended Decembei"Jl; 201:2, one customer accounted for. of the 
Company's total revenues.·Fo. r the period from May 16,2011 (da.te of inception) through December 31, 2011 .• 
one customer accounted for of the Company's tO~ revenues. As of December 31 2012, three 
cusromers made and. respectively, of accoWlts receivable. As of December 31 2011, three 
custO!llfiS made . and'l2%, respectively, of accounts receivable. 

Property atJd BquipmetJt atJd Dep.redatiOD. 

Propeny and equipment, including leasehold improvements, as of December31, 2012, are stated at their fair 
value at the date of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and 
amortization of property and equipment are computed principally using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives for owned assets, which are as follows: 

10 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidial)" . . 
NomS TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS- CONflNUEO 
Oec:einber 31• 2012 and 2011 

.~tdesc¥~ ... 

Computer hardware 
Leasehokl improvemmts 

MachineiY and equipment 
OffJCe equipment 

Life 

2-4 years 
Shorter of life of lease or 

estimated useful life 
2·5ycan 

3years 

l?ro~rty; piaiJt and equipment include gross assetS, acquired,· _Under caplw leases of ~9 •. at 

~=:Q!~~y anda;~·-.;:~lll=~~~2bri:;~~~=~ze~'~;:t:;~= 
as a compone~ o ; mac · iyand equip~ and. e¥Pire within the next 12 months. Amon:ization of these 
assetS under capital leases is included in depreciation expens¢. 

Improvemi'!nts. to leased property are amortized :over the shorter of the useful life of the improvement or the 
tenn ofthe related lease; Repam and maintenance costs are expensed u lncumd. 

The Q>mpanys f~binsupjiii:Jlts include cash and_ cash equivalents, acc()unts receivable, accountS 
pay.able and notes prayapte. The cartyjrtg ralues of~aSh ~d ~h ·~ ~ -~. and 
acCo!.lmS payable app~ximate their estimated fair values ·l$ed on dl¢· ~;;d.thc:~-9'~their 
quoted prices, unless. stated, because of the $hort-tc:Illl.il1aMtty·of the$e~.\ ·~ f~.valut$<of the 
Companys bonowings under its varial:Jle-rate agi:e~ritS approXimate their fair values 1,111less otherwise 
stated. The fair values of the notes payable reflect the ll'larket values for similar obligations considering their 
maturities, credit quality and market interest rates. 

Fair value is defJned as the price that 'WOuld be received to sell an asset or paid to ttansfer a liability in the 
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market 
partiCipants at the measurement date. The Financial Accounting :Standards Boan:l has established a fair value 
hierarchy that requi'res an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the. use of 
unobservable Inputs when measuring fair value, and also establishes the following three levels of inputs that 
may be used to measure fair value: 

Will -Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabllities. 

~ - Observable inputs other than Levell prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 
quoted market prices in markets that are not active; or model-derived valuations or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable market d:lta for substantially the full term of the assets or 
liabilities. 

Will ·Unobservable inputs that are. supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the 
fair value of the assets or liabilities. 

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price paid over net assets acquired in a business combination. 
Goodwill is not amoni7.ed. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are generally amonized on a straight-line 
basis over the periods benefited. Goodwill is tested annually for impainnent and whenever events or 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOI'ES TO CONSOLIDAtED FINANCIAL STAtEMENtS- CONTINUED 
December .lt, 2012 and 2011 

cin::umstances change, such as a significant adverse change in business climate or the decision to sell a 
business, that woUld make it more likely than not that an impairment. may have occ=d. If the canyilig 
values of goodwill exceed their fair values, an impainnent loss is recogni7.ed. The evaluation of impairment 
involve$ comparing the estima~d fa:ir v:Uue of the Company to the reconied value of goodwill. There was no 
~nt of gpodwill during the year ended December 31, 2012, or the period from May 16, 2011. (date of 
mcepncm) tlm>ughDecember31, 2011. 

The Company recognizes an acquired inrangible ass.et apart from goodwill whenever the intangil>le asset 
~ ftolli ton~l c:li' other legal righ~. or when it ~an ~ ~e~ted or ~ided f'?m ~the K~red entity 
and sold, tr.wsfen-ed. IK:emed, reJtted or exchanged, etther mdivtdually or m combmauon, With a .related 
contract; asset or liability. The intangible assets are mx>r:tizedovertheir expected lives as follows: 

- . . 

Asset description 

Tntdernarltlnade name 
Software 
(l.M technology 
Database 
Customer relationships 

Life 

20years 
3 yeazs 

12 yeazs 
8 yeazs 

12 yeant 

Impainnent losses are recogniZed if the canying amount of an intangible subject to amortization is not 
recoverab~. from expec:ted future cash flows and its carrying amount exceeds its fair value. No such losses 
were recognized in the.yea.r: endedDecember31, 2012, or the period from May 16, 2011 (date of inception) 
through December 31; 2011. · 

Long·liyed as$_e.ts are. reviewed for impainnent whenever events or changes in circwnstances indic;ne that the 
carrying asrount of a.Ssets may not be recoverable. The criteria for detennining impairment for such long~ 
lived assets t6 be held and used is determined by comparing the canying value of these long• lived assets to be 
held and used to management's best estimate of future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the 
use of these assets. If the assets are considered to be impaired, the impainnent to be recognized is measured 
by the amount by which the canying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. 1be estimated 
fa:ir value of the assets is measured by estimating the present value of the future discounted cash flows to be 
generated. There was no impairment of long-lived assets during the year ended December31, 2012. 

Reve.aue Rec:ogllition 

The Company recognizes revenue for provisioning and reselling of telecommunication circuits and from 
supporting and monitoring of its customers' netwOrk. The Company recognizes the revenue when persuasive 
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or upon peifonnance of the service to customers has occurred, 
the price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Deferred revenue represents cash 
received from clients or billings for which services have not yet been rendered or earned. 
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GC Piwtal; LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANQAL Sf ATEMENTS • CONTINUED 
December 31, 20U and 2011 

The Company also provides engineering services to design .and implement private transpott networks. The 
Company uses the input proportional. performance method, which approximates the ratio of total. input 
efforts completed to date to the total estimated input effort., to recognize the revenue. The Company bills the 
engineering services cas the services are completed on a. monthly basis . .AJ such, there are no pillings in excess 
of revenues or revenues in excess of billings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

AccoaDts Receivable, Net 

~eounts receivable balances are stated at amowlts due from the customer net of an ·allowance for doubtful 
accollnts. Credit eXtended 1$. based on an evaluation of the customer's financial c¢ndition and is granted to 

qUalified cusJOmei'$ on an. unsecured basis. · 

The. Company's stan~ terms reqUire payment within 30 days of the date of the inyqice. The Company 
treats invoices as past due when they remain urtpaid, in whole or in pan, beyond the payment time set for1h 
in the applicable service contract. · 

'Ibe Company determines its allowance for doubtful ;accounts by considering a. number of factors, including 
the length of time trade receivables are past due. the customer's cun-ent ability to pay its obligation to the 
Cornpany, and the condition of the general economy and the indU$tty as a whole. Specific reserves are also 
established on a case·br-case basis by management.. The-Company writes off aecounts after a determination 
by management that the a moun~ at issue are no •longer lilrely to be collected. following the exereise • of 
reasonable collection efforts, and upon management's determination thauhe costs of pursuing collection 
o4tWfigh the likelihood of re~overy. Payme~ subseqliently received on such receivables are credited to the 
allowance fot doubtful accotm.ts, As of December31, 2012 and 2011, the total aJlowance for doubtful 
accounts was- and respectively. 

Balance, Net additions Accounts Balance, 
January 1, charged to cost written off December31, 

2012 and expenses recovered 2012 

Accounts receivable allowances 

Balance, Net additions AccountS Balance, 
~y16, charged to cost written off Decembcr31, 

2011 and expenses recovered 2012 

Accounts receivable allo"W"ances $ 

Dciezred Revc.oue 

The Company earns sales revenue from providing its customers ongoing access to data services and the 
installation of those services. Advance billings are recorded as deferred revenue in the month prior to 
delivery. Defern:d revenue is generally shon-term in nature. 

Re•eucb and Development Cosa 

Expenditures made ~or researeh and de-elo ment are. charged ;o expense ~ inc~rred. Researeh ~d 
development costs m the amount of are mcluded m compensauon m the ac~g 
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December31, 2012. Approximately_,{ 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTESTO:OONSOLIDATED FINANa.AL STATEMENl'S ·CONTINUED 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 

research and development costs are· included in compensation in the accompanying ®nsolidated sta~ment of 
oper.ations for the period from May16, 2011 (date of inception) through December:n. 201.1. 

I.acome Taxes 

The O:unpany is an UC.taxed as a part:nezship Wlderthe U.S. Internal ~enue Code and. similar pmv.isioJ:~S 
of s:tate income tax rules. Under these provisions, the membcn of the Company are taxed on their 
proponionate share of the Company's taxable income. Income or loss gener.ated by the Company flow:s 
through to the members' income .tax returns. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state .income taxes has 
been included in these consolidated financial statements. 

The ~y recognizes the benefit of a tax pos~tion only :!her determining that the. :relevant tax authority 
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. Eor tax positions meeting the more likely 
than not ~s~o1d, the. ~\Ult ~d in t?c financial state~nts. is the largeSt be~Jt ~.has a ~ater 
than :50% likdibood of bcmg realized upon ulnmate. set;tlem:nt Wlth the relevant tax authonty.. Interest ~ 
penalties, j£ inCurred. are recognized in. the statement oloperatiorts. The Comp;illyhad no liabilities related 
to WlCenain tax positions at December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

kc::t:Ued c~ Erpens~ 

The: Corripahy accrues estimated charges owed to its suppliers for· services, whi!!h ~. included in accrued 
e~es in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, The Company bases this accrual on die supplier 
contract, the individual service order executed with the supplier for that service,.andthe length of time oftbe 
service. 

Otber Comptdcruive Loss 

In addition to net loss, comprehensive loss includes charges or credits to equity occuning other ~ as a 
rcsuh of transactions with members; For the Company, this consists of foreign currency transla,tion 
adjustments. 

Reclusilica tiona 

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2011 financial statements to confonn to the 2012 financial 
statement presentation. 

NOTE C • FORMATION OF BUSINESS . .-. 

14 



REDACTED 

GC Pivotal; LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES 1'0 CONSOLIDATED FINANOALST ATEMENTS- CONfiNUED 
Decembcr31, 2012and 2011 

NOTE 0- RELATED-PAR.TYTRANSACfiONS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company ente~ into transactions with Pivotal Group, Inc. Accrued 
~es in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets include amounts o~d to this entity of nd 
- at December31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Expenses related to management fees and legal 
expenses totale and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the period from Mar.l6, 
2011 (date of inception) through DecemberJl, 2011, res;tively. The management fee of is 
charged monthly. In addition, in 2012; the Company paid to a related agent for coimnissions earned 
during the year ended December31, 2012. 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiaty 
NOTES T(lCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· CONfiNUED 
December 31. .20U and 2011 . 

NOTE ·E .. CoMPOSITION OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEE1'ACC0UNTS 

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, consist of the following: 

AccQUIJts receivable - trade 
Unb.iiled receiv;mles 
Vendor receivable 
less allowance for doubtfUl accounts 

Accounts receivable, net 

,2012 

Property and equipment a$· ofDecember 11, 2012 arid 2011, c~ist of dl.e f9llow.ing; 

2011 

2017. . 2011 

COmputer hardware 
I.t!asehold improvemeiltS 
Macbir)e.ry:and equipment 
Office equipment · . 
Less -accunrulated depzeciaJ.ion and amortization (expense} 

Property and equipment, net 

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2012, 
... and for the period :from May16, 2011 (date of inceJ:)tion) through December31, 2011, was 

Accrued expenses as of Deeembe:r 11, 2012 and 2011, co~ of the followin~ 

Accrued carrier payable 
Accrued sales and regulatory tax 
Accrued employee salary and benefits 
Accrued other 

Total accrued expenses 

NOTE F · INf.ANGIBLE ASSETS 

The COmpany's intangible assets have useful lives that vary generally over three to twenty years. 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOfES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S1' ATEMENTS. CONTINUED 
December 31, 20U and 2011 

The Company's intangible assets subject to amortization as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, comprise the 
following: 

Ct.M technology 
Database 
Customer relationships 
Trade name 
Computer software 

Remaining 
years. of 

economic 
life 

10.4 yean 
6.4 years 

10.4yean 
18.4~:m--

1.4 yean 

2012 

~rtU.ation ~xpe~ for intangil:IJe IISSe~ for the~.· ended Decemberll, 2012, was-and for the 
penod from May i6, 2011 (date of mceptiOn) through December 31, 2011, was ~ · 
The estimated .future amortization expense is as' follows: 

Years ending December31. 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

NOfE G • FOREIGN OPERATIONS 

Total assets relating to foreign opero,tions included in the consolidated financial statements as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, were and- respectively. 

Total revenue related to foreign operations included in the consolidated financial statements as of 
December31, 2012 and 2011, were and-, respectively. 
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GCPivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOI'ES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS· CONTINUED 
December 3~ '2012 and 2011 

NOI'E H • BORROWINGS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Lc:ttu ofCmrHt 

As of December3l; 2011 and 2012, the Company maintains a-letter of credit for the benefit of the 
landlo~ !or office srce in Illinois.in lieu of a se~ deposit.. As of December 31, zo.n, the Company bad 
.an addiuonal ·letter of 'Credit for the beneftt of the Tennessee Regulatory Authonty. 

NOTE t:. EMPLOYEE' BENEFIT PlANS 

401(i) Ph.D. 

Underthe Company's 401(k) plan, all employees who are eligible to participate in the 401(k) plan are entitied 
to rraake tax-defened. contiibucions, subject to IRS limitations. 1he Company curtendy does not match the 
employe~$ contributions ~. 

LQtJg-1'erm 1tJcc:ptive Ph.D. 

On January 1. 2012 (the Effective Date), the Company established a long.tenn incentive plan. under the. 
pla~Piv·o·ital·Group; Inc. (the manag. er) may grant an incentive un .. it .to a participant under tb. e plililanlil.lfo•cr•' 
penod of 10 yean~ after the Effective Pate. The unit will be deemed to be the eQUivalent of~) t 

profit intere. st in. the C.o~. y;ereby. - units shall represem. the equi.val. e. nt ofa. profits interest it} 
the Compa. ny. A total of units will ultimately be sran;ted to partici~ts under the p~~.during the 
years 2012 through 2014. As o December31, 2012, •mits 'Were lSSued to the paructpants. 

The liability vm established by taking the amount of the percentage. of outstanding units muiriplied by the 
difference between the fair market value of the Company as of December 31, 2012, less the member 
preference · · returns and unreturned capital contributions of the ~mber.~). The fair market 
value on a third-partyvaluation. Member preference as o{December.H,20l2,vm 

dl.tl:erence between the fair market value and the member preference \Vol$ (the 
Waterfall). The Distributions Waterfall muhiplied by the ~ units issued was recorded as a 

deferred compensation liability and expense in the amount of . 

NOTE J · NOTES PAYABLE 

The Company has two loans outstanding with directors of the Company as of December 31, 2011. The loans 
were paid off during 2012. 

Current portion of notes payable 
Long-tenn portion of notes payable 
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GG Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOI'ES TOCO:NSOLIDATED FINANCIAI:.STATEMEN'I'S • CONTINUED 
December 31, 2012 and201t . 

NOI'E K • COMMI'tMENl'S AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Company has non-cancelable capital and. opeta.ting leas!!. agxeements ~ng to. equq,~ri~ and cenain 
facilities expiring through July 2018. Assets under capitalleaset are ·reflected on ~ ~o~lidated balance, 
sheets .as owned, while assets under non-cancelable operating leases ate not m:orded. on the Companys 
consolidated balance sheets. Rent expense on opemting leases: fot.tfie year ended December 3 t, 2012, was 

•. Rent ape~.e~ting leases for the period from:.Ma:y16, 2011 (~Qfineept:lon) through 
December31, 2011, ......as-
Fttture minimum lease -payments under capital and non-.cancelable operal:il;lg.~~ as of December 31; 2012, 
until July 1, 2018i are as follows: 

Years en~ Decemher31. 

1013 
1014 
201$ 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

Total 

Less amount representing interest. 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 

Capital 
leases 

-
.... --·----

Qpcr.rting 
leases. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2011, the Company entered into a supplier ~ement-on March 20, 2012 .. with 
purchase obligations of in year one, in ~r two. and in year three 
associated with the telecommunications services that the Company has contra4ed to purchase from its 
vendors. If the Company does not purchase the minimum obligated amount, the supplier will charge the 
Company the difference between the minimum annual obligated amount and the amounts paid in 
telecommunications services to the supplier for the commitment period. 

~entered into a second supplier agreement on November 29, 2.012, with purchase obligations of 
- m year one in year two; and in year three associated with the 
telecommunications services that the Company has contraCted to purchase from its vendors. If the Company 
does not purchase the minimum obligated amount, the supplier will chatge the Company the difference 
between the minimum arulUal obligated amount and the amounts paid in telecommuilications services to the 
supplier for the commitment period. 

The Company entered into a third supplier agreement on December l, 2012, with purchase obligations of 
- per month from December 1, zou· through December 1, 2013. The total amount of obligations 
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GC Piwtal, LLG and Subsidiary .. 
NOI'ES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS· CONTINUED 
December 31,2012 and 2011 

overone year·i$· If the Company does not p~hase the minimum obligated amount, the supplier 
will charge the Company 'the differertcll ~tween the cininimum annual qblig;tt¢d amount' ~d. the amounts 
paid in telecommJ.IIlications services to the suppliel' for the commitment period. 

COiltmgCD.cie• -Legal Pmct:ecJmg• 

1he Company i$ subject to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowse of business. In the opinion of 
managemcm, the ultimate disposition of those matten will not have a material adve~ effect on. the 
Company's .consolidai:!:dfmaricialposition; n:$Uits of operations or liquidit}T; No material reserves have been 
established for any pending legal proceeding, either because a loss 8 not probable or. the amount of a loss, if 
any, cannot be reasonably estimated. 

NOfE L · SUBSEQUENl' EVENTS 

The Company evaluated its December31, 201Z.fmancial statements for subsequent events through May 1,, 
2013, the date the financial stateiDeDtS were available to be issued. There were. no other subsequent events 
besides the ones disclosed m the notes above that re~ recognition or additional disclosure in the. financial 
statements. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Members 
GC Pivotal, ll..C 

01w1t lllamian LLP 
175 w JackS!~~ Boulevanl, lilh Floor 
CNcago, IL 606Q4..2687 . 

T 312:856.0200 
F J12.5M.4719 
Giail~ 
llnkdli/GiantTIIomla!US 
toitlel'.i:Onlltlf81\1TbQmtrtJS 

We have audited the accompanying eonsolidated financial statements of GC Pivotal, llC (a 
Delaware limited liabilit)iooillpally}·and Subsidiary(together, the Chmpany), which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated 
statements of comprehemi'-'eloss, changes in member's equityand cash flows for the years then 
end~ and the related notes to thefinancial statements. 

Management's· responsibility for the financial statements 
Manage~nt is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
finartcial. statements in acco~ with accounting principks generally accepted in the United 
States of~ this includes~ des~ implementation, and maintenance of internal contrOl 
relevant to the prepa.ration and fair pJ,eSemacion of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 
Our respoOSlbility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audits. We conducted oun.wdits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 

material misstatement. 

An audit involves pertorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor cortsiders internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circwnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
pcesent.1tion of the consolidated fmancial statements. 

ChollliOIIIooLLP 
U $ memDel ~m oiG<aol Tll'"nlon lnlsrl<liooal Lid 
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We believe that the audit evidence lW· have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion. the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faidy; in all 
material respects, the financial position of GC Pivotal, llC and Subsidiary as ofDecembc:r 31, 
201~ and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows fottheyears then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted .in the Uriited States of America. 

ClUcago, lllinois 
June1,2014 

Q> ... ~- liJ' u.s ... ....,lnn atGraol Thornlon 1..........,1 Lid 
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GCPiwbl, LLC~nd Subsidiary 
OONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
December31, 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and ash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

ASSETS 

Accounts receivable, oet of allo'WaJlCCS of- arid •• lit 
December 31,2013 :llld 2012, n:spectiVeo/ 

Prepaid expenses :l11d other CW'rent assets 

T otill Cl,ltrent assets 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET 

GOOOWILL 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Gurent pottioo of capital lease obligations 
Accounts papble 
Accrued expenses 
Defem:d IeVenue 

Total CW'I'el111iabilities 

LONG-TERM. LIABILITIES 
Deferred rent 
Capital lease obligatioos 

Total long- term liabilities 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

Total liabilities 

MEMBER'S EQUITY 
Oass A member's units, par value-; 1 unit issQerl, authorized 

and outstanding at December 31,2013 and 2012 
Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Accwnulated deficit 

Total member's equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statementS. 
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GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
CX>NSOLIDATEOSTATEME'NTS OF OOMPREHE'NSIVE LOSS 
Years ended DecemberJt, 

Revenues 

Gist of goods. and services sold 

Gross profit 

Operating.expemes 
CD.tnpensation 
CDmpensation •long-term incentiVe plan 
Travel and enteriainment 
Facilitr-rdated COstS 

Marketing 
Outside services 
Insurance 
Bad debt expense (recove.l}') 
Asset management fee 
Depreciation and axnprtizati:>n 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

Other expense 
Interest 
Other 

Total other expense 

NET LOSS 

Other comprehensive loss 
Foreign cum:ncy tr.uJSlation adjustment 

Total comprehensive loss 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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GC Pivotal. LL.C.and Subsidiary 
C:ONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBER•S EQUITY 
Two yean. ended December .31, 2013 

Class A Additional 
member's. 1Jilits paid.' m Accumulated 

Shares AmOUnt capital deficit 

B~jan,uary 1,2012 1 $ ~ 

Fo.reign Cor.rellC}' translation 
ad jus~ 

DistributiOns ., -Net loss " ·- ..:..: 

Balance, December 31,2012 .<i. 

Foreign c:urrencyuanslation 
adjustment 

Net loss :. -~ 

Babnce, December 31,2013 l $..;. 

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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GC Pivotal, LLC (lnd Subsidiary 
CONSOLIOATEDSTA'l'EMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31, 

Cash flo~ from.operating activities 
Net loss 
AdjustJtients to reconcili:-netloss to n¢t tal!h ptOvickd by 

(used in) operating ~Jivities 
Depreciation and amo.rtization 
Bad ·debt expense (recove~ 
Deferred compensation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Accounts· receivable 
Othercurrern assets 
AccountS payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred n:venue. 
Deferred revenue- long term 
Accrued conunitments and contiri~ncies 

Net cash provided by(used in) ope.r.tting activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
PJJrchase 9£ f.Q~:ed assets 
Purchase of c_omputer software 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows fromfmancing activities 
Changes in restricted cash 
Loan repa)'JPents 
Capital lease obligation 
DUtnbution to member 

Net cash provided by financing. activities 

Effect of exchange rate change 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Cash paid during the )t!ar for 
Interest 
Taxes 

Non-cash investing and financing activities 
Acquisition of property and equipment through capital leases 

The accompanying notes ace an integral part of these statements. 
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GC Pivotal, LLCand Subsi4iary 
NO'I'ES 10 CONSOLIDA'fED FINANCIAL S'fATEMENfS 
December 3'1,.200 ilnd 2012 · 

NOTE A· BACKGROI.JNDAND BASIS OF PRESEN'f ATION 

GCPivotal, Ll.G. d/b/a Global C;lpac.ity, LLCanc;l S~i4Wy(together, Globa,l(:apacityor th~ Q>mpany), :is 
a tele<:ommunications infonriadon AAdlogistics Col;llpallythat ilnprpves the efficiency and reduce$ the c~ of 
obtaining and maqaging i!CCCS$ . netwo$ gloPally. Through its One Marketplace Access Exchange,.· the 
Ctlmpany -Connects ctiStotnets and stippli¢ts m art automated exchange pJatfotm. Global Capacity delive~ its 
solutions ·r.o putpOSe-bui}f futegratots1 global car:ri¢ts1 managed service providen arid enterprise custome.rs 
globally. 

Global Capacitywas fonned'on May20, 2010, as: a limited liability company (ILQ under the state of Delawa~ 
statutes and began opetations' on May16, 201 ~- t:Jndei:the tenns of the LLCoperating agreement, the term of 
the Company shall continue. . ... to eXistin pe~ Global Capacity was forriledon May 16,2011, in connection 
:with the puri:hase ol sub$1:lllltially ill of the assets of Capital Growth Systerm. 

NOTE B • LIQUII)ITY 

The·acc~g fmancialstatements ha~ been.,repared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accc. p~d in thei~ States _of·Amc· . . rica (U_.s,_ GAAP), which contemplate the continuation of the O>=y 
as a gomgconcem.i Forthe.}'!(l~eil()ed Deceml;lerJ1~2013;. the Companyrecon;Jed a netl of -• 
Fo. r the.· ~ar. _e_nded. Oece~. . r. 3.-1., 2012_,,· .the· C9:np::ny recorded a net~f . , Ute_ .. Com. p. any. s 
~nt liabilities exceed Its cQttertt assets by - anc:i .-at ~cember 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. 

The Company's One Marketplace platform contributed largely to the success of the COmpany through 2013; 
Ute . One Marketplace platform leverages an ~~ interconnected, ph}Sical net\\Urk with a cloud 
application that amomatCS' the design, pricing, ordering, delivery and maintenance of netv.>Ork services. This 
success continued with the Companys ability to provide transparency into network pricing and visibility into 
available capacity across multiple access networks and technologies. ln2012, the Company furthered its grpwth 
with a new network design and implementation for one of its largest custome.rs. The Company also anilounced 
the addition of an Ethernet Access services product 'to the award-winning One Marketplace platform. For 
2013, the Company concentrat¢d ()1'1 adding new interconnected network providers and five new network 
Points of Presence to the One Marketplace network platform, increasing reach and price competitiveness of 
service. 

Management believes the Company has sufficient cash on hand at December 31, 2013, to sustain operations at 
its current levd through December 31, 2014. Ho~ver, if the Company's plans are not achieved and/or if 
significant unanticipated events occur, the Company may have to modify its business plan and/ or seek 
additional funding, which may not be available on desired tenns or at all. 
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GC Pivotal; LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS. <X>NTINUED 
December31; 2013and 2012 

NO'l'E C • SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Piindple• ofCozuoHdati011 

'The ~o~~ co~~lidatcd financial stat~ments ID,chxle all o£ ~ account$_. oLGlobal Capacity an~ its 
whoJJrbwned UK substdiaty; Magenta netl..otJc, Ltd. (Magenta). AU mu:rcoxn..eanyaccowitnnd trat'iSltCtlo~ 
~w:been eliminated ,in £Qnsolidation. Assets and liabilities of the Con1p'1Ply's1oreign subsidia,ty_~Jr.rtlsla~ 
a~:,year<end ~~e tat:eS~ Amounts in the consolidated Statements oftOmprehensive loss !ire:tmnslated using 
averl\f.e monthly exchange rnteS dqring th~ year. Gairu and losses resultilJg fn:nn uanslating foreign ~ 
financial~ are-recorded in ~ ~cqmpanying cqnsolkbt«l balaoc~ sheets within· ac~ !:5ther 
OO.Ittp.rehensive loss. The consolidated fmancial Statements and notes liave been prepared in ~-With 
US.G.MP: . - - -

lhep~noffinancialstatements in coiJfonnitywith U.S.G~ ~ managem,enttomabc;stimates 
and assumpuons that affect the .reponed amounts of assets and liabilities. Thesetstunat'esi alro affect·the 
disclosures ofcontingentlQSsets and .I.ia:billties as of the date of thefinanoial statementS and the reported amounts 
ot menues: and expenses during the reponing period.. Actual results could differ from those e~es. 

Sipill.~t RUk•·aad· Uac~itJtie• 

The Company's opef.ltions are subje~t tQ ce,uin risks and uncertainties, including those assqciated \\lith 
flu¢n:l:ltions in opemting results, funding expansion, strategic allian~, ~g rapid groWth and ~ioil; 
relationShips with supplie~, regulatory issues, competition, the economy, technology trends and :evolving 
industty standards. 

Caab and Casb BquivalctJts 

'Ihe Company conside~ all highly liquid instruments purchased with an original ~of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents. The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the c.redit.qualityof, the 
financial institutions with which cash and cash equivalents are on deposiL The Company maintains its cash in 
bank deposit accounts, which at times .may exceed federally insured limits. Accounts are guarattteed by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corgoration (FDIQ ~p to ~erta:in lhnits. At .£?ece~ 3.1. 2013 and 2012, the 
Company had and - , respectively, m excess of FDIC insured limits. The Company has 
not experienced any losses in such accounts. . 

Rutricted Casb 

Qrtain cash amounts are restricted as to use and are classified outside of cash and cash equivalents. As of 
December 31, 2013, restricte~ cash--:was ~ted to cash on ~posit in. reserve f?r.letters of credit. As 
of December 31, 2012, restncted cash of- JDCludes •n cash on depcis1t Jrt reserve accounts 
related to securing a credit limit on the Company's corporate credit Cards. The remaining restricted cash at 
December 31, 2012, was- relating to cash on deposit in reserve for lettets of crediL 
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REDACTED 

GC PivQtal, LLC and SubsidWy 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S'l'ATEMEN'I'S • CONI'INUED 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Co.ac:entntioas oiCrt;tlitlWir 

Financial instruments that potentially subjectthe Company to a concentration of credit risk consin principilly 
of cash and cash equivalentS and accounts receivable. All cash;and cash equivalents are with cJeditworthy 
financial institutions. 

Property and.Bquipmelit.~dDep~tioa 

Property and equipment, including leasehold impro'Ve:l:ilent5, as of ~tJl. 2013 and 2012, are stated at 
their fair value at the date of acquisition less accwn.ulated ·dep~ and ;lmOrtization. Depreciation and 
amortization of property and equipmentcare computed usirlgJlie.simikf1t-'1ine method over the estimated useful 
lives for owned assets, which are a'l· folloWS! · · · · 

Computer hardware 
Machinery and equipment 
OffJCe equipment 
lea'lehold improvements 

Life 

2-5yean 
2- Syears 

3ycom 
Shorteroflife of lea'le or 

estimated useful life 

Property and equipment include gross ass~ acquirtd und,er ~pitai leasd' of .and t 

December 31,2013 and 2012, jp~dy. Related amortization included in ac~d depreciation and 
amortization was- and .. Decembcr.J 1~ 2[13' and2012, respectively. Capital ~e,s are included 
a'l a component o~eiY an equipment. Arnort.ization of these ass~ under capitalle<lses is included in 
depreciation expense. 

Improvements to leased property are amortized over the shorter ofthe useful life of the improvement or the 
term of the related lease. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. 

Fair Value ofFillancial lllstrume11ts 

'The Company's financial instnunents include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable 
and capital lease payables. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, acoounts receivable and accounts 
payable approximate their est.imatedJairvalues based on the attributes of the instruments or their quoted prices, 
unless stated, because of the short-term maturity of these insthlmellts. 1be fair values of the G>mpanys 
borrowings under its capital lease agreements approximate their fair values unless otherwise stated. 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the 
principal or most advantageous marliet for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The Financial Acco11nting Standanls Board has established a fair value 
hierarchy that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivota~ LLC and Sub$idiazy 
NOTES 10 OONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· CONTINUED 
December 31, 2013 arid 2012 

inputs when measuring fair~~. and also establishes the following three levels of inputs that ,may be used to 
tne3SUre fair valuer 

~- Q!otedprices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

~ ~ Observable inputs oclJ~ than 'Levell prK:es, such as quoted prices for similar ,assets or liabilities; 
quoted market pi.ii:es m markets that are ilOt active; or modei-derived, valua:tioll$ .or other inputs that are 
obser:Vable or can be- C:ohobor.ited by observable market data for substantially the full t.enn of the assers or 
liabilities. 

~- Ut»bserv:ibk: infl~.t!tat ~supported by little or. no marlret activity and that are significant to the . 
faJrvali.Je of the assets or liabiliti~. 

GooclwiliUJdlllta/JgJDltJ &.cts 

Goodwill represents the ~ess of purchase price paid over net assets acquired in a business coJ"ObinatiQn. 
Goodwill iS not amo~d. Intangible assets with fmite useful lives are genemlly amortized on a straight-line 
basiS over the periods benefrt:ed. GoodWill Js. tested annually for impainnent and whenever events or 
circumstances change,:suclt as a significant adverse change, in: business climate or the decision to sell a business, 
dw would_ make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. If the carrying values of 
goodwill exceed their fair v.dues, an .impairment loss is recognized. The evaluation of impainnerit involves 
comparing the estimated fair value of the Company to. the recorded value of goodwill There was no 
impainnent ofgoodwillcluring the ~ended December 31, 2013 or 2012. 

The Company recognizes'an acqllired in:tangtb~ asset apart from goodwill whenever the intangible asset arises 
from conmctual or Other legal rights, o~ whe,n it am be separated or divided from the acquired entity~ sold, 
transferred, licensed, rented or exchatlged, either individually or in co~ination, with a related conlr.l(t, a5set 
or liability. The ititang;ble a5sets are amortized over their expected lives as follows: 

Asset desc;riftion 

T radernarkl tr.!de name 
Software 
a.M technology 
Database 
G!stomer relationships 

The weighted-average amortization period for the above intangible assets consists of the following: 

Asset description 

T rademarkl trade name 
Software 
a.M technology 
Database 
G!stomer relationships 

12 

Life 

20~ars 
3~ars 

12 ~ars 
Syears 

12 years 

Life 

17.4 years 
0.4years 
9.4 years 
5.4 years 
9.4 years 



REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANClAL STATEMENI'S • CONtiNUED 
December ll. 2013 and 2012 

Impairment losses are recognized if the canying amJWtt of an intangible subject to amortization is not 
reco-ver.ilile from ~cted fUUJre cash flows artd its carrying amount exceeds its fair vall¢; NO sUch losses 
were recognit.ed in the~ ended December 31,2013 or 2012. 

Lcmg-lived.A.r•etr 

long-lived ,assets are revie~ for impairm!;lnt whenever events or change$ m circumstances indicate that .the 
carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. The criteria for determining impainnentfor~ long-lived . 
assets to be held and used is. dete~ed by comp~ the carrying value of these long-lived ~~ to be held 
and used to managernent'"sbest estunate of future undiscounted cash flows e:xpectcd .to result from the use of 
these assets. If the assets are considered to be irnpajred, the impainnent to be recognized if measured by the. 
amount by whiCh the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value ofthe assets"." the estimated fairv.due 
of the assets is rnea.smcd by estimating the present value of the ·future discounted cash"f{ows .tQ.• bt!. generated. 
There '\11/35 no impairment of Jong-lived assets during the ~ars ended December 31, 2013 arid2012. ·. 

The O>m~y recognizes revenue for proviS~raing and re~Uing. of telec~ation ~~ an4 f~m 
s\lpp<>.rtiilg and moPiforing of itS customers' network. The Company~~ the revenue -wflenpenuasive 
~~ of an aitatlgement exists, delivexy or upon pertormance ofthe ~i!~ll to custo~rs }las O<:curre~ the 
price is fixed ot detenninab1e, and collectibility is reasonably ~~& Deferred JeVertut rep.resents cash 
niceived from clients or billings for which services have not ~ been rendered or earned. 

lhe Company also provides engineering services to design and implement private ttansportnet'Wl:nks. The 
Company recognizes mrenue for the engineering services as the serVJCes are peifonned. As. such. there are no 
billings in excess of revenues or revenues in excess of billings as of December 31.2013 and 2012. 

Accounts receivable balances are stated at amounts due from the customer net of an allo:w.mc;e for doubt;ful 
accounts. Credit extended is based on an evaluation of the cUstomer's financial coru:lhlon and is granted to 
qualified custometS on an unsecwed basis. 

The Cnrnpany's standard terms require payment within 30 days of the date of the invoice. The Company treats 
invoices as past due when they remain unpaid, in whole or in part, beyond the payment time sedorth in the 
applicable service contract. 

The Company determines its allowance for doubtful accounts by considering a number of factors, including 
the length of time trade receivables are past due, the customer's current ability to pay its obligation to the 
Company, and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Specific reserves are also 
established on a casc-br-case basis by management. The Company writes off accounts after a detennination 
by management that the amounts at issue are no longer likely tO be collected, following the exercise of 
reasonable collection efforts, and upon management's detennination that the costs of pursuing collection 
outweigh the likelihood of recovery. Payments subsequently received on such receivables are credited to the 
allowance for doubtful accounts. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the total allo'W'allCe for doubtful accounts was-and- respectively. 
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REDACTED 

GC Pivotal, LLGand Subsiillary . . 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUED 
December 31, 2013and 2012 

Balance, Net accounts 
January!, written off 

2013 (recovered~ 

J\ccoWlts receivable allowances - -.Baknce, Net accounts 
Janu;uyi, written off 

,~bti ... (recovered) 

AccoWtts receiyable allowances 

De£u:red Reft.flue 

Balance, 
December 31, 

2013 -Balance, 
December 31, 

2012 --
The G>mpany earns sales revenue from providing it$. CU$mers ongoing access to data services and the 
installation of thcise services. Advance billiiigs are ~corded as deferred revenue in the month prior to delivery. 
Deferred revenue is generallyshon-term in nature. 

Resea.rcb and IJevelopmeilt CoBta 

Expenditures made for re5earch. and devek>pment ·•~ ~ed to expeme as iitcurred; Research and 
development costs in the an1Quritof and 1 fze included:in compensatiOn in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of compre~mive loss for the }eu:S ~December 31, lOll and 2012, respectively. 

Income Taxes 

The G>mpany is an ll.C taxed as a partnership under the U.S .. lntemal:Revenue Code and similar provisions 
of state income tax rules. Under these provisions, the membels of the Company are taxed on their 
proportionate share of the Company's taxable income. Income .or loss generated by the G>mpany flows 
through to the member's income tax .returns. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state income taxes has 
been included in these consolidated financial statements. 

The Company recognizes the benefit of a tax position only oafter determining that the relevant tax authority 
would more likely than not sustain the position follo~g an audit. For tax positions meeting the more likely 
than not threshold, the am<>Wlt recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater 
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. lnteresl and 
penalties, if incurred, are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss. The O>mpany h:ad 
no liabilities related to \Ulcenain tax positions at December 31,2013 and 2012. 

Accrued Carrier Expensea 

The G>mpany accrues estimated charges owed to its suppliers for services, which are included in accrued 
expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The G>mpany bases this accrual on the supplier 
contract, the individual service order executed with the supplier for that service and the length of time of the 
serviCe. 
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REDACTED 

GCPi~tal; LLC and S!Jb$idiaty 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANaAL$fATEMENTS ·CONTINUED 
December 3~ 2013 and 20U . . . . 

OtlJer ComprelJetJ1lvr: L0$4 

In addition to net loss, co~hensive loss includes charges or credits to equity occurring mherthan as a resuh 
of transactions with membets, .·For tlie Company, this consists of foreign currency translation adjustments. 

NOTED· FOXWATlONOF BUSINESS 
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GCPiwta~ LLCand Subsidiary 
NOTES·T{HUNSOUDATED FINANaAL STATEMENTS· OONTINUED 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 

NOTE E • RELATED-PARTYTRANSACflONS 

In accolti_ance with the tenns of the Company's operating agreements an affiliate of~.member,.~iyotaJG~PI 
Inc., recaveu monthly asset management fee of The asset management fee paid and mcllll'ed during 
~ ptotaled~reach of the~ ended Dece~b~r31, 201Jart.d 2012.In, ~n, the Company 
pa~d - ~~- to a related agent for commlSSions eamed m Decenilie~ 31; 2013 and 2012, 
'res~~··~· included Within compensation. in the accompanying.·consofidated'statementt of 
comp~ensive loss. Accrued payables to the related agent for comm~siqns .Unhe accom.pan}'ing.consolidared 
balance sheets include amounts owed to this entity of. and - at Oc#mbet: 31~ 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. 

NOTEF. OOMPOSIDON OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACOOtJNTS 

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 201Jand 2012, cons~t of the following: 

Accounts receivable- t~e 
Unbilled ~les 
Vendor receivable 
Less :illo"Wan<;~ fo.r doubtful accounts 

Accounts receivable, net 

20i3 

Property and equipment as of December 31,2013 and 20121 cons~t of the foUowing: 

2(11,2 

2013 2012 

Comp~r hardware 
Leasehold improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Office equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization expense 

Property and equipment, net 

~reciation and amortizati~n expense for property and equipment for the )'ear'S ended December 31, 2013 
and 2012, was and respectively. 
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GC riwtal, LLC and Subsidiary 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS • CONTINUED 
December 31; 2013 and 2012 

Accroed expenses as ofDecember Jl, 2013 .·and 2012, con5i$t of the: following: 

Accrued carrier pay.ibie 
Accrued sales and regulatory tax 
Accroed employee salary and benefits 
Accroed other 

Total3CC1'Uf:d expenses 

NOTE G· INTANGiBLE ASSETS 

2013 

-
The G>mpany's intangible assets have usefUl. lives, that vary generally over three to 20 years. 

2012 

The Company's int:a:ngible assets subjeCt to ambrtizatlon 'as of December 11, · 2013 and 2012, comprise the 
following: 

O.M teehnology 
Database 
Cllstomer relatiomhips 
Trade name 
Computer software 

Less accumulated amortization 

Intangible assets, net 

Remaining 
years of 

economic 
life 

9.4years 
5.4years 
9.4)'eal'$ 

17.4 years 
0.4 )'f:ars 

Amortization ~nse for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was ••• 
and respectively. 
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GC Pivotal, llO and ·Subsidiary: 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUE.D 
December 31, 2011 and 2012 

The· estimated future amorti2ation expense iS as follo-ws: 

YearS endin~ Decembet]l. 

2014 
20l5 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Thereafter 

NOTE H ·FOREIGN OPERATIONS 

To. tal asse. ts relating tofoRif! operations i.nclud ..... · ed in the· consolidated financialstatements .as of December 31, 
2013 and 20121 were. • and , respectively; 

Total revenue related to foreign ()perations included in the consolidated fmancial statements as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012~ 'Were and respectively. 

NOTE I· BORROWINGS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Letter of Credit 

As of December31, 2013 and 2012, the O,mpany maintains a-and letter of credit, J:eSpeetfully, 
for the benefit of the landlord for.offtce space in IllinoiS in lieu of a security deposit. 

NOTE J- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

401(1) Plall 

Under the O:lmpany's 401{19 plan, all employees who are eligible to participate in the 401(k) plan are entitled 
to make tax-deferred contributions, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. The O,mpanycurrently 
does not match the employees' contnbutions made. 

LotJg-term ltJcetJtive PJ.tJ 

On January 1, 2012 (the Effective Date), the O,mpanyestablished a long-term incentive plan (the Plan). Under 
the Plan, Pivotal Group, Inc. {the manage~ may grant an incentive unit to a participant for a period of 10 years 
after the Effective Date. The unit will be deemed to be the equivalent of a Yo profit interest in the 
O,mpanywhereb~ units shall represent the equivalent of .e'k profits interest in the Company. Subject 
to the discretion of the manager, the Plan contemplates that a total of units will ultimately be granted 
to panicipants under the Plan during the years 2012 through 2014. As of December 31, 2013,- units 
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December 31, 2013 and 2012 

~)were issued and outstanding to the participants. Afo(Decembed.1,2012,~·) 'lo'Cre. 
issued to the panicipants. The units are subject to cenain vesting and orher requirements as outlined in the 
P~ .a.nd rela~ unit agreements. · 

'Ihe liability'll'aS establiSh.ed bfa5swning that the is$\ICd and Qmstandirts ~ts· v.et:e f4fi.y·Ye$U!d, then taking 
the ampunt of the pert:entage of otit$tanding units multiplied bythl! diff~nce be~n theJa:ir~twlue 
of the CompanyasofDecemberJ1, 2103 .and2012, less the . . • .·, . ~aid priority~ and 
un.retumedcapitalrontrihutiom of the member). As .and 2012, tlleJaQ:marltet;ia~Jleof 

Decemher31~13 and2ot£ :ictivep ~ . lhe::t=.C~~r: 
market value .and the member preference "\''aS (the D$1buti0Jl$, Wa:tedall) <>n 
December 31, 2013 and 2012J. respectively. . . · • m~tip~d ··.~·the II$ units 
outstanding was recorded as the deferred compensation · . · · 31, 20i3. ·The Distiibutions 
Waterfall:mul!E. lied . the RAi units issued was recorded as a deferred compensation liil.bilityand expense fu 
~ ~unt of as Of December 31,.2012. · The ~ar-over-~ar c&ange in the ·deferred compensation 
liabilityaceount of was expensed 1n 2013 . 

. NOTE K· OOMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

1he Company has IIOD-cancelable capital and opezat:Ulg lease agJ;eements relating tQ tq~umd cenain 
facilities exphing through july2019; Assets under capital leases. ;ire reflectedon\the consolicJatedbalanc:e $beets 
as owned, while assets under non-cancelable opemting leases ·;ire not recoi.tled.on th~ Companys eotJScilidated 
balance sheets. Rent expense on operating leases for the years ended 'December 31, 2013 an4 2012, was 
••• :and respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments under capital and non-cancelable oper.tting le~es as of December 31, 2013, 
Wltil July 1, 2018, are as follows: 

Years ending December 31. 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

Total 

Less amoWlt representing interest 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 

19 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANOAL STATEMENTS· CONI'INUED 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 . . ·. 

Coat:tactual COtDZDitmeats'IF.itb. Va.tious SupplieD 

The Company has entered into various supplier agreemertts • dJat. requin! the CompMy tQ purchase certain 
minimum teleco~;ntnnnication se~. In the event that,·S~ ~ an:·not met. the. Company~ required 
to pay the shortfaJI. As ·of DeceoiberJ 1, l013, all con~ coitirn¢menr,s have been me~ .Funire rniniml.im 
purchase commitments underexecuttd supplict agreements, are iS' follows: 

Years ending December 31. 

2014 
2015 
2016 

Coadageacie1 -Legal Ptoceedblg• 

The Company is subject to legal procet§ings arising in the ordinary cowse of business. In the opinion .of 
management, the ultimate disposition of:th6se.ma~ will not have a material adver5e effect on the Companys 
consolidated financialposition, resu4s ()f operations or liquidity. N¢ inawri!l reserves have been established 
for any pending legal proceeding, either because a loss is not l'JObable or the amount e>f a.loss, if any, cannot 
be reasonablyestimated. 

NOTE L · SUBSEQUEN'( EVENTS 

The Company ~valw¢ed its December 31, 2013', coosolidated flq;mcial statements for subsequent eVents 
thmugb.June 2, 2014, the date the consolidatedftnatltihlstatements were available to be issued. There were 
llQ other subsequent events besides the ones disclosed in the notes above that requin: recognition or additional 
disclosure in the consolidatedfmancial statements, 
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